No. 1 2015/16

LONDON BOROUGH OF
WALTHAM FOREST

NOTICE OF THE MEETING
OF THE COUNCIL
TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 9 JULY 2015

Council Meetings
Seating Plan 2015/16
Cllr A
Bean
Cllr A
Khan

Cllr M
Pye

Cllr L
Ali

Cllr P
Douglas

Cllr C
Coghill
Cllr M
Rusling
Cllr K
Limbajee
Cllr C
Loakes
Cllr C
Robbins

Cllr J
Gray
Cllr S
Terry
Cllr S
Littlejohn
Cllr J
Khan
Cllr S
Dhedhi
Cllr N
Asghar
Cllr S
Highfield

Cllr G
Lyons

Cllr J
Edwards
Cllr M
Asghar
Cllr A
Mbachu
Cllr M
Ahmad
Cllr W
Ihenachor
Cllr R
Anwar

Cllr Y
Osho

Cllr A
Mahmood

Cllr K
Rayner

Cllr T
Wheeler

Cllr T
BennettGoodman

Cllr P
Edwards

Cllr S
Waldron

Cllr K
Berberi

Cllr A
Beg

Cllr G
Williams

Director of
Governance

Cllr S
Mahmud,
Mayor

Cllr L
Mitchell

Cllr S
Miller

Cllr T
James
Cllr P
Braham
Cllr C
Erics
Cllr N
Halebi
Cllr M
Balkan
Cllr A
Hemsted

Democratic Services
Chief
Executive

Cllr S
Emmerson

Director of
Finance

Cllr N
Ali
Cllr T
Bell
Cllr A
Strathern

Cllr K
Bellamy
Cllr P
Barnett
Cllr J
Moss
Cllr B
Mill
Cllr R
Berg
Cllr S
Rackham
Cllr J
Hemsted
Cllr G
Walker

Cllr R
Sweden
Cllr M
Fitzgerald
Cllr A
Siggers
Cllr P
Herrington
Cllr M
Davis

Waltham Forest Council and Committee Meetings
All Council/Committee Meetings are held in public unless the business is exempt
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1972.
Most meetings are held at Waltham Forest Town Hall which is an accessible
venue located in Forest Road E17 between Waltham Forest Magistrates Court
and Waltham Forest College. The nearest underground and railway station is
Walthamstow Central which is approximately 15 minutes’ walk away from the
Town Hall. Buses on routes 275 and 123 stop outside the building.
There is ample parking accommodation for visitors for meetings held at Waltham
Forest Town Hall including parking bays for people with disabilities.
From 3 January 2012 the Town Hall Complex site became a Permit/Pay and
Display facility. The following parking charges now apply between 8.30 am and
5.00 pm weekdays:
1 hour: £1.30
2 hours: £2.60
3 hours: £3.80
4 hours: £5.10
24 hours: £6.50
There is a ramped access to the building for wheelchair users and people with
mobility disabilities.
The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms are accessible by lift and are
located on the first floor of Waltham Forest Town Hall.
Induction loop facilities are available in most Meeting Rooms.
Electronic copies of agendas, reports and minutes are available on the Council’s
website. The link is http://democracy.walthamforest.gov.uk
Contact officers listed on the agenda will be able to provide further information
about the meeting and deal with any requests for special facilities.
Contact details for report authors are shown on individual reports. Report
authors should be contacted prior to the meeting if further information on specific
reports is needed of if background documents are required.

Reporting on Proceedings at Meetings
The Council is legally required to allow any person to film, record or report upon the
meeting (including live recording). We ask that people filming the meeting to focus
on the committee but it is possible that as a member of the public you may be filmed
or recorded. The Council does not control or process any personal data recorded by
a member of the public or press.
If you would prefer not to be filmed, we recommend you sit in the Upper
Gallery where there is less chance of being filmed.
The Mayor or Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any reporting if, in
his/her view, this is causing a general disturbance, for example through excessive
use of flash photography or intrusive camera equipment, or by the person reporting
moving about the meeting room. In such cases attendees may continue to observe
the meeting, but not to report on it.
If the meeting votes to exclude the press and public during consideration of exempt
or confidential material then, in conjunction with this, all rights to report on the
meeting are removed.
Anyone recording a meeting is asked to focus only on those actively participating,
and is requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it can
be reused and edited by other local people and organisations on a non-commercial
basis.
If you have any questions please contact Democratic Services on 020 8496 3000 or
at democraticservices@walthamforest.gov.uk. Members of the press are asked to
contact the Communications Team on the above number or at
media@walthamforest.gov.uk, particularly if you expect to use large equipment
(including lighting).
Full details of the Council’s Protocol on the Reporting on Proceedings at Meetings by
the Press and Public are available on the Council’s website at http://bit.ly/11gxSfT.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are prescribed by the Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows:
Interest

Description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant
period in respect of any expenses incurred by a member in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body
in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the
relevant authority—
(a)
under which goods or services are to be provided or works
are to be executed; and
(b)
which has not been fully discharged.

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant
authority.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area
of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the member’s knowledge)—
(a)
the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b)
the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a)
that body (to the member’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b)
either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
(ii) (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one
class in which the relevant person has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

A Member must disclose at meetings as a non-pecuniary interest:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Appointments made by the authority to any outside bodies (excluding joint committees with
other local authorities);
Membership of charities;
Membership of trade unions recognised by the authority;
Membership of lobbying or campaign groups;
Governorships at any educational institution in the borough;
Membership of voluntary organisations operating in the borough.

General Dispensation
In accordance with s33(2) of the Localism Act, 2011, the Monitoring Officer has granted dispensations
to all Councillors until the Annual General Meeting of Council in 2018.
The grounds for the dispensations are that:
 Granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the authority’s area(s33(2)(c)) of
the Localism Act 2011) by allowing their elected representatives to participate and vote on the
Council’s budget and council tax setting: and
 It is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation (s33(2)(e))
in that the dispensation will allow members to fully represent their constituents in respect of these
important matters.

Members of the Council of the London Borough of Waltham Forest are hereby
summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of the Council to be held on Thursday, 9
July 2015 at the Council Chamber - Waltham Forest Town Hall at 7.30 pm to
transact the business set out below.
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are required to declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests they or
their spouse/partner may have in any matter which is to be considered at this
meeting. Interests are defined on the inside cover of this agenda.

3.

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 21 MAY 2015 (PAGES 11 - 46)
To approve the minutes of the Annual Council Meeting held on 21 May 2015.

4.

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, COUNCIL LEADER, CABINET
MEMBERS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

5.

PUBLIC STATEMENTS

6.

EXECUTIVE REPORTS TO COUNCIL
A.

REPORT FROM THE HOUSING PORTFOLIO LEAD

B.

REPORT FROM THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING PORTFOLIO LEAD

7.

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS

8.

NOTICES OF MOTION
PRIVATE RENTED LETTINGS
Notice of the above Motion was given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.
Councillor Sally Littlejohn will move;

Councillor Jacob Edwards will second

This Council Notes
The number of households renting privately in the borough has increased from
15,500 to 26,100 between 2001 and 20111
i

1. In 2012 a total of 31,810 privately rented properties were identified in the area
and estimated that the PRS now makes up 32% of borough’s housing
stock/residential dwellings.2
2. With approximately 66% of all tenancies being arranged through the letting
market3
3. The average letting agent fee is £355 in England and Wales4
4. The average costs of moving into private rented accommodation are around
£2000 in London5
5. One in four people have been charged what they felt were unfair letting agency
fees6
This Council Believes
1. High letting agency fees place an unfair burden on prospective renters who are
unable to plan for unpredictable and arbitrary costs
2. That as the private rented sector grows and the use of Letting Agencies
increase it is vital to improve the security and conditions for the increasing
number of tenants in Waltham Forest
3. A lack of transparency allows Letting Agencies to double charge landlords and
tenants for the same service
4. That some agents in the letting market charge high fees, which do not reflect
the service they provide, simply because they can
This Council Resolves
1. To require letting agents to undertake comprehensive publication of their fees
and charges
2. To utilise powers granted in the 2015 Consumer Rights Act that allow the
imposition of sanctions following non-publication of fees
3. To call on the government to introduce primary legislation that will end upfront
fees paid by tenants to letting agents

1

ONS Census Data, 2011

2

Strategic Housing Market Assessment, 2012

3

Which? Renting roulette, Consumer experience of the lettings market, November 2012

4

YouGov Survey, 2012

5

Resolution Foundation, Renting in the Dark, 2011

6

YouGov Survey for Shelter, December 2011

ii

9.

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2014-15

(PAGES 47 - 64)

Council is asked to agree the Annual Treasury Management report 2014/15.
10.

AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION - EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES
(PAGES 65 - 80)
Council is requested to adopt the amended Employment Rules.

11.

REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE
(PAGES 81 - 110)
Council is asked to adopt the revised Terms of Reference for the Planning
Committee.

12.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT

(PAGES 111 - 114)

Council is asked to approve the Audit and Governance Annual Report 2014/15.
13.

APPOINTMENTS
Details of appointments to be made will be set out in the Order Paper for the
meeting.

1 July 2015
Chief Executive
Councillors and officers: if you are reading this on your tablet or laptop, the Council has saved
£4.56 on printing.
Speak to Democratic Services to learn more.

iii

Agenda Item 3
MINUTES
of the proceedings of the Annual Council Meeting of the London Borough of
Waltham Forest held at Walthamstow Town Hall, Forest Road, London E17 on
Thursday, 21 May 2015.
PRESENT:
Councillors:

Masood Ahmad, Nadeem Ali, Liaquat Ali MBE JP,
Raja Anwar, Mohammad Asghar, Naheed Asghar,
Millie Balkan, Peter Barnett, Angie Bean, Aktar Beg,
Tony Bell, Karen Bellamy, Kastriot Berberi, Roy Berg,
Paul Braham, Clare Coghill, Matt Davis,
Shabana Dhedhi, Paul Douglas, Jacob Edwards,
Stuart Emmerson, Caroline Erics, Marion Fitzgerald,
Jenny Gray, Nick Halebi, Andy Hemsted,
Jemma Hemsted, Peter Herrington, S K A Highfield JP,
Tim James, Ahsan Khan, Johar Khan, Khevyn Limbajee,
Sally Littlejohn, Clyde Loakes, Gerry Lyons,
Asim Mahmood, Saima Mahmud, Anna Mbachu,
Bernadette Mill, Simon Miller, Louise Mitchell,
John Moss, Yemi Osho, Marie Pye, Sheree Rackham,
Keith Rayner, Chris Robbins, Mark Rusling,
Alan Siggers, Alistair Strathern, Richard Sweden,
Steve Terry, Sharon Waldron, Geoff Walker, Terry
Wheeler and Grace Williams
Councillor Terry Wheeler (Mayor) in the Chair

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Tim Bennett-Goodman, Patrick
Edwards and Whitney Ihenachor.
2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None
3.

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 5 MARCH

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2015 were approved as a correct record
and signed by the Mayor.
4.

ELECTION OF MAYOR

It was moved by Councillor Clare Coghill; seconded by Councillor Ashan Khan and
RESOLVED unanimously
that Councillor Saima Mahmud be elected Mayor of the London Borough of Waltham
Forest to hold office until her successor is appointed.

Page 11

Councillor Saima Mahmud (Mayor) in the Chair
Councillor Wheeler invested the newly elected Mayor with the Badge of Office.
After signing the Declaration of Acceptance of Office, Councillor Mahmud
addressed the Council.
During her speech the Mayor thanked the Council for her election and
(a)

announced that her objectives would centre on equality and human rights,
including addressing female genital mutilation, forced marriage and domestic
violence; and Educate to Eradicate;

(b)

announced that her charities would be:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Haven – a domestic violence survivor-led charity
The Kiran Project - meeting needs of women of Indian sub-continent
heritage experiencing domestic violence
Waltham Forest Samaritans;

She would also support a major initiative investigating the factors contributing to
diabetes and heart disease;
(c)

announced that Arifa Nasim would be her consort, and that a team of youth
mayors was being recruited; and

(d)

announced that her spiritual advisers would be Yusuf Hansa, Father Alex
Summers, Tara Khare, Councillor Paul Braham, and Kuhan.

The Mayor presented:
A past Mayor’s Badge and Certificate to Councillor Wheeler.
A Badge and Certificate to Karishma Mohamed as Youth Mayoress;
Shorai Shoniwa-Forchin (YIAG), Rickisha Dalson (YIAG), Katy Thompson and
Jacqueline Sheehy.
5.

LEADER'S REPORT

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Chris Robbins addressed the Council.
1. The Leader gave notice that he had appointed the following persons to serve on
the Cabinet
Cabinet Member
Cllr Clyde Loakes
Cllr Liaquat Ali
Cllr Angie Bean
Cllr Clare Coghill
Cllr Ahsan Khan
Cllr Khevyn Limbajee
Cllr Mark Rusling

Portfolio
Deputy Leader
Community Safety and Cohesion
Adult Services
Economic Growth and High Streets
Health and Wellbeing
Housing
Children and Young People

Page 12

Junior Cabinet Members
Cllr Naheed Asghar
Cllr Sharon Waldron
Cllr Grace Williams
2. The Leader gave notice of the following delegations:
Except where specifically provided for in the Constitution, or a decision has been
taken by himself or by Cabinet to delegate a decision in a particular matter to a
specified individual or body, the following general arrangements shall apply in respect
of matters which, under the Constitution are defined as key decisions:
(a)

Except where paragraph (b) applies, all key decisions shall be taken collectively
by Cabinet;

(b)

Where a key decision relates only to a matter within a single Portfolio Holder’s
area of responsibility and/or has only a minimal impact on another executive
portfolio in the view of the Director of Governance (or his/her representative),
the decision may be taken by the relevant Portfolio Holder, subject to the
Director of Governance being satisfied as to the following:
(i)

that appropriate consultation has been undertaken on the matter
concerned;

(ii)

that all relevant matters are set out in a report that is considered by the
Portfolio Holder; and

(iii)

a proper record is published of the Portfolio Holder’s decision.

3. The Leader confirmed the delegation of executive powers to officers as set out in:
(i)

the General Scheme of Delegation;

(ii)

the Council’s Constitution; and

(iii)

as set out in item 9 of the agenda.

and that all officers with delegated powers may in turn delegate those powers to other
officers in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and legislation.
4. The Leader said that as executive leader, he reserved his statutory powers to
make different arrangements for the discharge of executive functions to those set out
above where this is desirable or necessary in the circumstances and following the
receipt of legal advice, where appropriate. Portfolio holders’ areas of responsibility of
responsibility are set out in Appendix A to the minutes.
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Matt Davis, addressed the Council in reply.
6.

APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES AND OTHER COUNCIL BODIES
2015/16

It was moved by Councillor Steve Terry and seconded by Councillor Alan Siggers and
RESOLVED unanimously

Page 13

That the Council,
1.

in accordance with Appendix B to the minutes:

(a)

appoint standing Committees for the Municipal Year 2015/16;

(b)

decide the number of seats on all committees;

(c)

determine the allocation of seats on committees to party groups, where
appropriate in accordance with the political balance rules;

(d)

appoint councillors to sit on committees in accordance with nominations made
by the Group Whips;

(e)

appoint the chairs and vice-chairs of committees for 2015/16;

(f)

appoint councillors to serve on other Council bodies;

2.

and furthermore:

(g)

agree that the terms of reference of standing committees for 2015/16 shall be
as set out in the Council's Constitution;

(h)

agree that all councillors will be appointed as supernumerary members to
substitute when a named member of a committee is unable to attend a
meeting, in accordance with the Council's scheme for the appointment of
substitute members; Group Leaders and/or Group Whips being able to agree
substitutions in respect of members of their party groups, that, in respect of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, Executive members may be substituted only by
other members of the Executive; and that, in respect of any Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Executive members cannot serve as substitutes. (Note:
the supernumerary arrangements do not apply to the Cabinet);

(i)

agree that the Mayor’s Special Responsibilities Allowance will be set at £8,000
per annum with immediate effect; and

(j)

agree the consequential amendments to the Constitution arising from these
decisions are to be finalised and published by the Director of Governance.

7.

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

It was moved by Councillor Steve Terry and seconded by Councillor Alan Siggers and
RESOLVED unanimously
That the Council agree to appoint representatives of the Council to serve on bodies
and organisations in accordance with the nominations made by the Party Whips as
shown in Appendix C to the minutes.
8.

PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS

It was moved by Councillor Steve Terry and seconded by Councillor Alan Siggers and
RESOLVED unanimously
That the Council

Page 14

(a) approve the updated Programme of Meetings as set out in Appendix D to the
minutes for the 2015/16 civic year, and incorporated consequential amendments
arising from Council’s decision on the establishment of committees for the civic
year.
(b) agree that the Chief Executive in consultation with the Party Whips be authorised
to agree any subsequent changes to the programme arising from clashes of
membership following the appointment of committee memberships at this
meeting.
9.

SCHEME OF DELEGATION

It was moved by Councillor Chris Robbins and seconded by Councillor Matt Davis
and RESOLVED unanimously
That the Council
(a) agree the delegation of non-executive functions (as defined by the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000
(amended) to officers as set out in:
(i)

the Council’s Constitution

(ii)

the General Scheme of Delegation attached to the report, and

(iii)

Appendix 3 to the report relating to food safety and trading standards, with
the addition of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Housing Act 1996;

(b) agree that all officers with delegated powers have power to further delegate
those powers to other officers under s.101 of the Local Government Act 1972 or
as provided for by any other legislation and may agree a scheme of delegation to
officers for their service areas;
(c) delegate to the Director of Governance the power to make and publish the
necessary changes to the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation to give effect to
the decisions above at 2.1 and 2.2; and
(d) agree that the Management Structure at Appendix 1 to the report be incorporated
into Part 11 of the Council’s Constitution.

The Council rose at 8.42 pm.

Page 15

APPENDIX A
TO MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 21 MAY 2015.
PORTFOLIO HOLDERS’ AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY OF
RESPONSIBILITY
Leader







Strategy
Policy
Budget
Communications
Relationship with partners and Government
Culture

Deputy Leader











Redefining Waltham Forest
Envirocrime and enforcement
Mini Holland programme
Customer services
Neighbourhood services including street cleansing, refuse collection,
waste and recycling
Traffic, parking and highways policy and management
Environmental health and trading standards
Parks and greenspaces
Climate change
Chief Operating Officer functions

Economic Growth and High Streets













Growth Commission
High streets and town centre management
Economic development and inward investment
Employment
Relationship with business
Regeneration
Planning Policy
Council property and capital strategy
Training, skills and adult education
Walthamstow Market
Procurement and commissioning
Revenues and benefits

Page 17

Community Safety and Cohesion












Crime and disorder strategy
Anti-gangs strategy
Troubled Families programme
Drug Action Team
Voluntary sector
Relationships with police and fire authorities
Community cohesion
Prevent strategy
Civil contingency planning
Community engagement
Equalities

Children and Young People










Statutory functions under the Children Act
Education
Children and young people’s social services provision
Schools capital projects
Early Years
Youth provision
Youth Offending Team
Children Safeguarding
Child Poverty

Housing






Housing strategy
Ascham Homes
Registered social landlords
Private housing sector
Private Sector Licensing

Adult Services






Statutory responsibility for Adults Services
Personalisation strategy
Families and adult services
Older people’s strategy
Supporting People

Page 18

Health and Wellbeing







Strategic relationship with local, regional and national health authorities
Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Public Health
Chair of Health and Well-being Board
Leisure centres and facilities
Sports development

Page 19

APPENDIX B
TO MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 21 MAY 2015.
COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2015/16
SECTION 101/102 STANDING COMMITTEES
Audit and Governance Committee (4 – 3:1 plus one independent member)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Paul Douglas
Chair
Labour
Councillor Jacob Edwards
Vice-Chair
Labour
Councillor Naheed Asghar
Labour
Councillor Jemma Hemsted
Conservative
Caryle Webb-Ingall
Independent Member (Co-optee)
Health and Wellbeing Board (not subject to political balance)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Ahsan Khan
Chair
Labour
Councillor Angie Bean
Labour
Councillor Mark Rusling
Labour
Dr Andrew Taylor
Co-optee
Director of Public Health
Terry Huff
Co-optee
Chief Officer, Waltham
Forest CCG
Dr Tonia Myers
Co-optee
Clinical Director,
Waltham Forest CCG
Dr Anwar Khan
Co-optee
Clinical Director,
Waltham Forest CCG
Dr John Samuel
Co-optee
Clinical Director,
Waltham Forest CCG
Lucy Shomali
Co-optee
Director Regeneration
and Growth
Linzi Roberts-Egan
Co-optee
Deputy Chief Executive,
Families
Jaime Walsh
Co-optee
Manager, Waltham
Forest Healthwatch
Paul Bennett
Co-optee
Deputy Chief Executive,
Growth & Regeneration
Licensing (General) Committee (15 – 11:4)
Member
Role
Councillor Nadeem Ali
Chair
Councillor Shameem Highfield
Vice-Chair
Councillor Raja Anwar
Councillor Mohammad Asghar
Councillor Tony Bell
Councillor Tim Bennett-Goodman

Page 21

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour

Councillor Jenny Gray
Councillor Patrick Edwards
Councillor Caroline Erics
Councillor Nick Halebi
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Councillor Louise Mitchell
Councillor Andy Hemsted
Councillor Richard Sweden
Councillor Geoff Walker

Labour
Labour
Conservative
Conservative
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Conservative

Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Committee (15 – 11:4)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Nadeem Ali
Chair
Labour
Councillor Shameem Highfield
Vice-Chair
Labour
Councillor Raja Anwar
Labour
Councillor Mohammad Asghar
Labour
Councillor Tony Bell
Labour
Councillor Tim Bennett-Goodman
Labour
Councillor Patrick Edwards
Labour
Councillor Caroline Erics
Conservative
Councillor Jenny Gray
Labour
Councillor Nick Halebi
Conservative
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Labour
Councillor Louise Mitchell
Labour
Councillor Andy Hemsted
Conservative
Councillor Richard Sweden
Labour
Councillor Geoff Walker
Conservative
Pension Fund Committee (5 – 4:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Simon Miller
Councillor Andy Hemsted
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Councillor Keith Rayner
Councillor Terry Wheeler

Party
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Labour
Labour

Planning Committee (5 – 4:1)
Member
Councillor Stuart Emmerson
Councillor Jenny Gray
Councillor Asim Mahmood
Councillor Alan Siggers
Councillor Grace Williams

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Page 22

Staffing Committee (10 – 7:3)
Member
Relevant Cabinet Member
Councillor Grace Williams
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Councillor Matt Davis
Councillor Paul Douglas
Councillor Peter Herrington
Councillor Gerry Lyons
Councillor Nick Halebi
Cabinet Member
Cabinet Member

Role
Chair

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Labour

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BODIES (SUBJECT TO POLITICAL BALANCE BUT ON AN INDIVIDUAL
BASIS)
Budget Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Councillor Alistair Strathern
Councillor Jenny Gray
Councillor Kastriot Berberi
Councillor Peter Herrington

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Community Safety Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Shabana Dhedhi
Chair
Councillor Jacob Edwards
Vice-Chair
Councillor Roy Berg
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Co-optee
Nominee of Safer
Neighbourhoods Board
(currently Philip
Dundon)
Education Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Councillor Louise Mitchell
Councillor Tony Bell
Councillor Aktar Beg
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
To be appointed
Growth Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Councillor Asim Mahmood
Councillor Mohammad Asghar

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative

Party
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative

Co-optees

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Page 23

Party
Labour
Labour

Councillor Shameem Highfield
Councillor John Moss
Health Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Councillor Johar Khan
Councillor Yemi Osho
Councillor Paul Douglas
Councillor Sheree Rackham
Shumon Rahman
Co-optee

Labour
Conservative

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Waltham Forest
Resident
Nominee of Waltham
Forest Healthwatch
(currently Kat
Sandford)

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
(Co-optee)

Neighbourhoods Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Gerry Lyons
Chair
Councillor Simon Miller
Vice-Chair
Councillor Karen Bellamy
Councillor Millie Balkan

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative

Social Care Scrutiny (4 – 3:1)
Member
Councillor Richard Sweden
Councillor Aktar Beg
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Councillor Tim James
Neil Collins

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
(Co-optee)

Shumon Rahman
Co-Optee
Co-Optee

Role
Chair
Vice-Chair

Waltham Forest
Carers’ Association
Waltham Forest
(Co-optee)
Resident
Nominee of Children in
Care Council (currently
Jessica Boateng)
Nominee of Waltham
Forest Healthwatch
(currently Kat
Sandford)

Page 24

OTHER COMMITTEES AND BODIES (INCLUDING NON-STATUTORY AND ADVISORY BODIES,
AND BODIES WITH NON-ELECTED MEMBERS)
Admissions Forum (2 – 1:1)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
Conservative
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Labour
Adoption and Permanency Panel (1)
Member
Role
Councillor Marie Pye

Party
Labour

Children in Care Council (3 – 2:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Councillor Sheree Rackham
Councillor Mark Rusling

Party
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Corporate Parenting Board (3 – 2:1)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Labour
Councillor Tim Bennett Goodman
Labour
Councillor Geoff Walker
Conservative
Note: 3 councillors nominated by party groups, in addition to the Social Care Scrutiny
Committee Chair, and the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) for health, adults and older
people, and children and young people.
Fostering Panel (1)
Member
Councillor Aktar Beg

Role

Party
Labour

Mobility Forum (2 – 1:1) Membership to be drawn from Members appointed to the
Transport Liaison Consultative Group
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Alan Siggers
Conservative
Councillor Shameem Highfield
Labour
Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (4 – 3:1)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Kastriot Berberi
Labour
Councillor Paul Braham
Conservative
Councillor Shameem Highfield
Labour
Councillor Richard Sweden
Labour

Page 25

Transport Liaison Consultative Group (5 – 4:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Masood Ahmad
Chair
Councillor Marie Pye
Vice-Chair
Councillor Tim Bennett-Goodman
Councillor Alan Siggers
Councillor Tony Bell

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Waltham Forest Tenants Council (5 – 4:1)
Member
Role
Councillor Mohammad Asghar
Councillor Bernadette Mill
Councillor Patrick Edwards
Councillor Saima Mahmud
Councillor Keith Rayner

Party
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Labour
Labour

JOINT COMMITTEE
Outer North East London Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee (3 – 2:1)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Gerry Lyons
Labour
Councillor Richard Sweden
Labour
Councillor Tim James
Conservative

Page 26

APPENDIX C
TO MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 21 MAY 2015

OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENTS 2015/16
(* denotes annual appointment)
Councillors appointed to outside organisations must disclose a non-pecuniary interest if a matter
relating to that body is discussed at a Council meeting when the Member is present. Councillors
must also ensure they are familiar with the guidance on pre-determination and bias in the
Council’s Code of Conduct. Please seek advice from the Director of Governance if you are at all
uncertain.
Members should take advice before taking on additional roles or functions that have the potential
to conflict with their appointment by the Council.
* 12F (Walthamstow) Squadron Air Training Corps (1)
Member
Role
Councillor Richard Sweden

Party
Labour

* Age Concern London (1, appointee invited to AGM only)
Member
Role
Councillor Richard Sweden

Party
Labour

* Ascham Homes (ALMO) Board (3 – 2:1)
Member
Councillor Sally Littlejohn
Councillor Alan Siggers
Councillor Alistair Strathern

Role

Party
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Role

Party
Labour

* Ascham Homes Shareholder Nominee (1)
Member
Councillor Khevyn Limbajee

* Asian Centre Management Committee (3, Observer Status)
Member
Role
Councillor Naheed Asghar
Observer
Councillor Asim Mahmood
Observer
Councillor Peter Herrington
Observer
* Barking and Gospel Oak Line User Group (3)
Member
Councillor Terry Wheeler
Councillor Keith Rayner
Lucy Shomali
* Buxton Learning Trust (1)
Member
Linzi Roberts-Egan
* CREATE (1)
Member

Page 27

Party
Labour
Labour
Conservative

Role

Party
Labour
Labour

Role

Party

Role

Party

Councillor Ahsan Khan
Henry Green Scholarship Fund (4)
Member
Clyde Kitson (for an unspecified period)
Councillor Anna Mbachu (for an unspecified period)
Councillor Louise Mitchell
Councillor Grace Williams

Director

Labour

Role

Party
(Public)
Labour
Labour
Labour

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority (1, 4-year appointment) – to note
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Gerry Lyons (1 July 2013-30 June 2017)
Labour
* Leyton Sports Ground Management Committee (4)
Member
Role
Councillor Jacob Edwards
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Councillor Simon Miller
Denise Humphrey, Group Manager, Youth Support Service
* LGA Annual Conference (2)
Member
Councillor Liaquat Ali
Councillor Clyde Loakes
* LGA General Assembly (1)
Member
Councillor Chris Robbins

Party
Labour
Labour
Labour

Role

Party
Labour
Labour

Role

Party
Labour

* Local Government Information Unit (1, Director status)
Member
Role
Cllr Khevyn Limbajee
Director

Party
Labour

London Legacy Development Planning Decisions Committee (1)
Member
Role
Councillor Terry Wheeler
Councillor Stuart Emmerson
Substitute

Party
Labour
Labour

London Road Safety Council (2, member status)
Member
Councillor Kastriot Berberi
Councillor Geoffrey Walker
also the Road Safety Section Manager

Role

Party
Labour
Conservative

* London Youth Games (1, attendance at AGM only with voting rights, also nominated as a
Director of London Youth Games Ltd)
Member
Role
Party
Mr Michael Lewis
(Public)
* North London Waste Authority (2)
Member

Page 28

Role

Party

Councillor Gerry Lyons
Councillor Clyde Loakes

Labour
Labour

* North London Waste Plan Planning Members Group (1)
Member
Role
Councillor Clare Coghill

Party
Labour

NPS Property Services (1)
Member
Councillor Clare Coghill
Martin Esom, Chief Executive

Role

* Pan-London Healthcare Scrutiny (2 – 1 member and 1 deputy)
Member
Role
Councillor Richard Sweden
Member
Councillor Yemi Osho
Deputy

Party
Labour

Party
Labour
Labour

* Reaching Out (formerly Waltham Forest Association of Disabled People) (1 – observer
status)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Shameem Highfield, JP
Observer
Labour
* Relate (North East London) (1 – adviser)
Member
Councillor Yemi Osho

Role
Adviser

Party
Labour

Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for Greater London (1 – appointed a member of the
Association)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Geoffrey Walker
Conservative
Robert Ozler Trust (Walthamstow Fund) and Sir George Monoux Trust
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Steve Terry
Labour
Mrs Janet Lewis
(Public)
* Safer Neighbourhoods Board (3 – 2:1) (formerly Community Safety Board)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Shabana Dhedhi
Labour
Councillor Jacob Edwards
Labour
Councillor Roy Berg
Conservative
* Sea Cadets – Waltham Forest Unit No. 347 (Pimp Hall Nursery) Management Committee (1)
Member
Role
Party
Councillor Tony Bell
Labour
* Wadham Lodge Sports Ground Trust (1)
Member
Councillor Paul Douglas

Role
Trustee

* Waltham Forest Citizens’ Advice Bureau (up to 3 – Trustees)

Page 29

Party
Labour

Member
Councillor Caroline Erics
Councillor Alistair Strathern
Councillor Grace Williams

Role
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee

Waltham Forest Faith Communities Forum Core Group (2)
Member
Role
Councillor Anna Mbachu
Rhona Cadenhead

Party
Conservative
Labour
Labour

Party
Labour

Waltham Forest Learning Disabilities Partnership Group (1)
Member
Role
Councillor Richard Sweden

Party
Labour

* Waltham Forest Race Equality Council: Management Board (4)
Member
Role
Councillor Raja Anwar
Councillor Bernadette Mill
Councillor Johar Khan
Councillor Yemi Osho

Party
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Labour

* Waltham Forest Race Equality Council: Executive Committee (2)
Member
Role
Councillor Raja Anwar
Councillor Bernadette Mill

Party
Labour
Conservative

Walthamstow Almshouses and General Charity (Trustee status, 4-year appointments) – to
note
Member
Role
Party
Councillor John Moss to May 2017
Trustee
Conservative
Wenda Belam to 17 July 2016
Trustee
Ann Molyneux to 24 May 2016
Trustee
Ian Moyes to 20 November 2016
Trustee

Page 30

LONDON COUNCILS – COMMITTEES AND FORUM
Leaders Committee (3)
Councillor Chris Robbins (Voting
Member)
1 Voting Member and up to 2 Deputies
First Deputy: Councillor Clyde Loakes
Second Deputy: Councillor Clare Coghill
Transport and Environment Committee
(Associated Joint Committee)
1 Member and up to 4 Deputies
Grants Committee (Associated Joint
Committee)

Councillor Clyde Loakes
First Deputy: Councillor Gerry Lyons
Second Deputy: Councillor Grace
Williams
Councillor Liaquat Ali

1 Voting Member and up to 4 Deputies

First Deputy: Councillor Clyde Loakes
Second Deputy: Councillor Mark Rusling

Greater London Employment Forum

Councillor Pete Barnett

1 Member and 1 Deputy

Deputy: Councillor Gerry Lyons

BODIES TO WHICH APPOINTMENTS ARE NO LONGER REQUIRED
Corporation of Waltham Forest College
Nominations to this body are no longer required.
Joint Committee of the Olympic Host Boroughs
This body is no longer functioning.
LGA Rural Commission
This body was disestablished in autumn 2013.
LGA Urban Commission
This body was disestablished in autumn 2013.
Waltham Forest Sports Council
This body no longer exists.
Sports Club Orient Trust
Nominations to this body are no longer required.

Page 31

APPENDIX D
TO MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 21 MAY 2015
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL, CABINET, COMMITTEES, AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT
MEETINGS 2015/16
(shown highlighted)
School Holidays
Council and Committee meetings normally start at 7.30pm unless indicated otherwise. Member
The dates of individual meetings may change. An up to date record of meeting dates is maintained on the
Council’s website at: http://democracy.walthamforest.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
Updates are issued with the Councillors’ Circular.
MAY 2015

DAY

DATE

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

TUE
WED

19
20

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS

May Bank Holiday

GENERAL ELECTION

Conservative Group AGM
Tenants Council
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Labour Group
Conservative Group

Ascham Homes
Board
SACRE (7:00pm)

Cabinet (2:00pm)
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Annual Council Meeting

Spring Bank Holiday

Page 33

JUNE 2015

DAY

DATE

MON

1

TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

WED
THU

10
11

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

26
27
28
29

TUE

30

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS
HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC
AND OTHER
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Corporate Parenting
Board
Planning Committee (7.00pm)
Health Scrutiny
Labour Group

Licensing Act 2003 and
Gambling
Growth Scrutiny
Health and Wellbeing Board
(12.30)

Stop and Search
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny
Beginning of Ramadan
Pension Fund

Conservative Group
Cabinet (2:00pm)
Social Care Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Audit and Governance

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Armed Forces Day
Safer Neighbourhoods
Board
LGA Annual Conference

Page 34

JULY 2015

DAY

DATE

WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

8
9
10
11
12
13

TUE

14

WED
THU
FRI

15
16
17

SAT
SUN
MON

18
19
20

TUE

21

WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS
LGA Annual Conference
LGA Annual Conference

Conservative Group
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Planning (7.00pm)
Tenants Council
Council Meeting

Corporate
Parenting Board
SACRE (6:30pm)
6:00pm Mobility
Forum and
7:30pm Transport
Liaison
Consultative
Group
Budget Scrutiny
Labour Group
Last day of Ramadan
Eid Ul-Fitr

Education Scrutiny

Ascham Homes
Board

Cabinet (2:00pm)
Community Safety Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Page 35

AUGUST 2015

DAY

DATE

SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS

Planning (7.00pm)

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Abolition of Slavery

Summer Bank Holiday

Page 36

SEPTEMBER 2015

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

DAY

DATE

TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Planning (7.00pm)
Budget Scrutiny
Labour Group

TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Cabinet (2:00pm)
Growth Scrutiny

WED
THU

16
17

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

FRI
SAT
SUN

25
26
27

MON

28

TUE
WED

29
30

Conservative Group

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS

Corporate
Parenting Board

Tenants Council

Eve of Rosh Hashanah
Rosh Hashanah

Health and Wellbeing Board
(12.30)
Social Care Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Health Scrutiny

Rugby World Cup starts

Pension Fund

Eve of Yom Kippur
Yom Kippur
Eid-Ul-Adha

Ascham Homes
Board
Audit and Governance

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

SACRE (6:30pm)

Page 37

Labour Party Conference
Eve of Sukkot
Labour Party Conference
Sukkot
Labour Party Conference
Labour Party Conference

OCTOBER 2015

DAY

DATE

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN

1
2
3
4

MON

5

TUE

6

WED

7

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED

16
17
18
19
20
21

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS
HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC
AND OTHER
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Labour Group

Conservative Party
Conference
Start of Shemini Atzeret
Conservative Party
Conference
Shemini Atzeret
Start of Simchat Torah
Conservative Party
Conference
Simchat Torah
Conservative Party
Conference

Planning (7.00pm)

Education Scrutiny

Cabinet (2:00pm)
Community Safety Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny

Conservative Group
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Safer Neighbourhoods
Board
Council Meeting

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Rugby World Cup ends

Page 38

NOVEMBER 2015

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

DAY

DATE

SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

THU

12

Labour Group

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

13
14
15
16
17

Conservative Group
Cabinet (2:00pm)

WED
THU

18
19

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

20
21
22
23

TUE
WED

24
25

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

26
27
28
29
30

Planning (7.00pm)
Social Care Scrutiny

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS
Black History Month

Tenants Council
Bonfire Night

Remembrance Sunday
Growth Scrutiny
Act of Remembrance
Diwali
Corporate
Parenting Board

6:00pm Mobility
Forum and
7:30pm Transport
Liaison
Consultative
Group

Budget Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Pension Fund

SACRE (6:30pm)

Ascham Homes
Board
Community Safety Scrutiny
Licensing Act 2003 and
Gambling

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

St Andrew’s Day

Page 39

DECEMBER 2015

DAY

DATE

TUE
WED

1
2

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

3
4
5
6
7
8

WED
THU

9
10

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

11
12
13
14
15

WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THUR
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THUR

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE
AND GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS
HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC
AND OTHER
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Planning (7.00pm)
Non-Domestic Rates
Ratepayers Meeting
(6:00pm)
Labour Group

Hanukkah begins
Health and Wellbeing Board
(12.30)
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny
Civic Carol concert
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Education Scrutiny

Safer Neighbourhoods
Board

Conservative Group
Cabinet (2:00pm)
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Council Meeting

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Christmas Day
Boxing Day

Page 40

JANUARY 2016

DAY

DATE

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED

8
9
10
11
12
13

THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE
AND GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHOP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS
New Year’s Day Holiday

Planning (7.00pm)
Audit and Governance
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Labour Group

Conservative Group
Social Care Scrutiny
Tenants Council
Corporate
Parenting Board
Community Safety Scrutiny

Growth Scrutiny

Conservative Group
Cabinet (2:00pm)
Health Scrutiny

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Holocaust Memorial Day

Page 41

FEBRUARY 2016

DAY

DATE

MON
TUE
WED
THU

1
2
3
4

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

24
25
26
27
28
29

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS
LGBT Month

Planning (7.00pm)
Education Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Labour Group

Chinese New Year
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny
Conservative Group

Budget Scrutiny
Special Cabinet (Budget
Setting) (2.00 pm)

Conservative Group

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Page 42

MARCH 2016

DAY

DATE

TUE

1

WED
THU

2
3

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

4
5
6
7
8

WED

9

THU

10

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

11
12
13
14
15

WED
THU

16
17

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON

18
19
20
21

TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE
AND GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

Group Whips (6.00pm)
Planning Committee (7.00pm)

RELIGIOUS
HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC
AND OTHER
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
St David’s Day

Tenants Council
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Council Meeting (Budget)

Audit and Governance

International Women’s
Day
Corporate Parenting
Board

Health and Wellbeing Board
(12.30)

Commonwealth Day
Health Scrutiny

6:00pm Mobility Forum
and 7:30pm Transport
Liaison Consultative
Group (TBC)

Pension Fund
Licensing Act 2003 and
Gambling

St Patrick’s Day

Safer Neighbourhoods
Board
Cabinet (2.00 pm)
Community Safety Scrutiny
Labour Group

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Purim start
Good Friday
Easter Sunday
Easter Monday

Page 43

APRIL 2016

DAY

DATE

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

WED
THU

13
14

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

SUN
MON
TUE

24
25
26

WED
THU
FRI
SAT

27
28
29
30

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS

Conservative Group
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Planning (7.00pm)
Education Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)
Council Meeting

Budget Scrutiny
Growth Scrutiny
Labour Group
Eve of Pesach
First Day of Pesach
St George’s Day
Pesach (Passover)
Cabinet (2:00pm)
Social Care Scrutiny

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Workers’ Memorial Day
Last day of Pesach

Page 44

MAY 2016

DAY

DATE

SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU

1
2
3
4
5

FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
SUN
MON
TUE

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

COUNCIL, COMMITTEE AND
GROUP MEETINGS

CONSULTATIVE
AND
PARTNERSHIP
MEETINGS

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS,
FESTIVALS, CIVIC AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS
Bank Holiday

Planning (7.00pm)
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny
LONDON MAYORAL
ELECTION
Labour Group
Conservative Group
Health Scrutiny
Leadership Team (10.00am)

Conservative Group
Group Whips (6.00 pm)
Annual Council Meeting

Cabinet (2:00pm)

Council Meetings Schedule 2015/16

Lag Ba Omer

Spring Bank Holiday

Page 45

Agenda Item 9

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST
9th July 2015

Meeting / Date

Council

Report Title

Annual Treasury Management Report 2014-15

Report Author/
Contact details

Debbie Drew, Pensions and Treasury Manager
Finance
E-mail: Debbie.drew@walthamforest.gov.uk
Tel: 020 8496 8165
Vince Yeboah, Senior Accountant
Email: Vince.Yeboah@walthamforest.gov.uk
Tel: 020 8496 4274

Wards affected

None

Public Access

OPEN

Appendices

1 Annual Treasury Management Report 2014-15

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of
practice on Treasury Management. The report asks Council to note
and agree the Annual Treasury Management Report 2014/15 as
recommended. This Annual report covers the following:-

1.2



Capital activity during the year;



The impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying
indebtedness (the Capital Financing Requirement);



The prudential and treasury indicators;



Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has
borrowed in relation to indebtedness, and the impact on
investment balances;



Summary of interest rate movements in the year;



Debt activity;



Investment activity;



Investing in the Local Authorities’ Property Fund.

The Council held £157.9m of investments as at 31st March 2015. The
council maintained an average investment balance of £169.5m and the
average interest earned for the year was 0.71% against a benchmark
of Six month London inter-bank offer rate (Libor) of 0.68%.

Page 47

1.3

The debt portfolio as at 31st March 2015 was £255.7m with an average
interest payable of 4.72% and an average maturity of 51.2 years.
Current market rates compared to the council’s loan portfolio profile is
3.44%, reflecting the fact that most borrowing was undertaken
historically when rates were higher.
Summary of the Council’s Treasury position as at 31st March 2015:

1.4

*Excludes PFI

TABLE 1

31 March
2014
Principal
£000

Rate/
Return

Average
Life yrs.

31 March
2015
Principal
£000

Rate/ Average
Return
Life

Fixed rate borrowing:
-PWLB

208,843

4.79%

17.5

205,345

4.81%

17.2

-Market

45,391

4.82%

52.2

50,369

4.38%

51.2

Total debt

254,234

4.79%

255,715

4.72%

CFR*
Over / (under)
borrowing
Investments:
- in house

291,183

287,546

(36,949)

(31,831)

143,731

0.66%

0.8

157,946

0.89

0.8

Total investments
143,731
0.66%
0.8
157,946
0.89
0.8
1.5
All treasury management activities within the year have been in
accordance with the approved limits and prudential indicators as set
out in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2014/15.
2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Audit and Governance Committee recommend the Full Council to:

2.1.1 Agree the Annual Treasury Management report 2014/15.
3.

PROPOSALS

3.1

Treasury Management in the context of the report is defined as:
“The Management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows,
its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” (CIPFA
Treasury Management Code of Practice 2011).

3.2.

The Council has powers under Part 1 of the Local Government Act
2003 to borrow (i.e. prudential borrowing) and invest money in
accordance with statute. In carrying out these functions, the Council is
required to have regard to statutory guidance, which is currently found
in the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code of Practice. As this is statutory guidance, the Council should
follow the guidance unless there is good reason not to. The Guidance

Page 48

requires the Council to agree a treasury strategy for borrowing and to
prepare an annual investment strategy, an interim report and an annual
treasury management review.
3.4

The Primary requirements of the code are as follows:
This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones
effective treasury management:

for

A Treasury Management Policy statement, stating the policies,
objectives and approach to risk management of its treasury
management activities.
Suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMPs), setting out
the manner in which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies
and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those
activities.
The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject
only to amendment where necessary to reflect the particular
circumstances of this organisation. Such amendments will not result in
the organisation materially deviating from the Code’s key principals.
The Council will receive reports on its treasury management policies,
practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy
and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review and an annual
report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMPs.
The Council has delegated responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to
the Treasury Management Strategy Group, and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to the Director of
Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy
statement and TMPs and, if he/she is a CIPFA member, CIPFA’s
Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.
3.2

The Council organisation nominates Audit and Governance Committee
to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury
management strategy and policies.

4.

CONSULTATION

4.1

The Treasury Management Team and Treasury Strategy Group are
consulted on the content of this report. Membership of these groups
includes the following officers: Pensions and Treasury Manager,
Director of Finance, Assistant Director of Finance, Head of Finance,
Financial Planning and Corporate Accountant.

Page 49

5.

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Finance, Value for Money and Risk

5.1.1 This report details financial activity in respect of treasury strategy for
the year ending 31st March 2015. Recommended treasury strategies
were implemented to maximise the value and effective utilisation of the
Council’s finances and in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice.
5.2

Legal

5.2.1 The Council‘s constitution provides that all money held by the Council
shall be aggregated for the purposes of Treasury Management and
shall be under the control of the officer responsible for the proper
administration of the Council’s financial affairs (Section 151 officer).
5.2.2 This report sets out the Council’s position with regard to its legal
requirements under the CIPFA Prudential Code, Code of Practice on
Treasury Management in Local government, and other regulations.
5.3

Equalities and Diversity

5.3.1 There are no specific implications
5.4

Sustainability (including climate change, health, crime and
disorder)

5.4.1 There are no specific implications.
5.5

Council Infrastructure

5.5.1 There are no specific implications

Approval by the Portfolio Holder
I have cleared this report for inclusion on the Council agenda.

Signed:

Date: 30th June 2015

Cabinet Member for Economic Growth and High Streets

Page 50

Annual Treasury Management Review
2014/15

Page 51

2

Contents
Purpose ............................................................................................3
Executive Summary ...........................................................................4
Introduction and Background .............................................................5
1.

The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2014/15 .....6

2.

The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need.................................7

3.

Treasury Position as at 31 March 2015 .............................10

4.

The Strategy for 2014/15 .................................................11

5.

The Economy and Interest Rates.......................................11

6.

Borrowing Rates in 2014/15 .............................................12

7.

Borrowing Outturn for 2014/15 ........................................13

8.

Investment Rates in 2014/15............................................13

9.

Investment Outturn for 2014/15.......................................14

Page 52

3

Annual Treasury Management Review 2014/15
Purpose
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and
treasury indicators for 2014/15. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).
During 2014/15 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should
receive the following reports:




an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 06/03/2014)
a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 16/10/2014)
an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the
strategy (this report)

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of
treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore, important in that
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members.
This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give prior
scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Audit and Governance
Committee before they were reported to the full Council. Member training on treasury
management issues was undertaken during the year on 22/02/2015 in order to support
members’ scrutiny role.

Page 53

4

Executive Summary
During 2014/15, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements. The
key prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities
during the year, with comparators, are as follows:

2013/14
Actual

2014/15
Estimate

2014/15
Actual

£000

£000

£000

965

597

550

Schools Programme

37,457

53,977

44,889

Regeneration & Growth

33,384

24,097

29,123

Housing General fund

1,761

1,197

1,351

Residents First

1,307

819

635

Corporate Priorities

3,806

1070

3,842

Total Non - HRA

78,680

81,757

80,390

HRA

25,916

26,031

23,533

Total Capital Programme

104,596

107,788

103,923

Capital Financing Requirement:

Non-HRA

HRA (if applicable)

Total

175,929
180,479
356,408

232,578
188,310
420,888

168,620
181,287
349,907

External Debt
Finance Leases

254,234
65,243

250,707
62,361

255,715
62,361

Gross Debt

319,477

313,068

318,076

(10,000)
(133,731)
(143,731)

(10,000)
(36.430)
(46,430)

(20,000)
(137,946)
(157,946)

175,746

266,638

160,130

Prudential and treasury
indicators
Capital Expenditure
Adult and Social Care

Investments

Longer than 1 year

Under 1 year

Total
Net borrowing

Other prudential and treasury indicators are to be found in the main body of this report.
The Director of Finance also confirms that borrowing was only undertaken for a capital
purpose and the statutory borrowing limit (the authorised limit) was not breached.
The financial year 2014/15 continued the challenging investment environment of previous
years, namely low investment returns.

Page 54

5

Introduction and Background
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised
during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is
to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is
needed.
Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially
before considering investment return
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council,
essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital
spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or
short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion any debt previously
drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives
This report summarises the following:









Capital activity during the year;
Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital Financing
Requirement);
The actual prudential and treasury indicators;
Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to this
indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances;
Summary of interest rate movements in the year;
Detailed debt activity; and
Detailed investment activity.

Page 55

6

1. The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing
2014/15
The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may either
be:




Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital
receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant impact on
the Council’s borrowing need; or
If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. The table
below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.

2013/14
Actual
£000

2014/15
Estimate
£000

2014/15
Actual
£000

78,680

81,757

80,390

-

(13,182)

(7,128)

Capital Grants & Reserves

(83,846)

(49,413)

(71,773)

Revenue

(13,219)

(894)

(1,489)

-

(18,268)

-

2013/14
Actual
£000

2014/15
Estimate
£000

2014/15
Actual
£000

25,916

26,031

23,533

(18,385)

(21,276)

(20,107)

(7,531)

(4,755)

(3,426)

General Fund
Capital expenditure
Capital Receipts

Unfinanced capital expenditure

HRA
Capital expenditure
Financed in year
Unfinanced capital expenditure

Page 56

7

2. The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need
The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR). This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The CFR
results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the capital
spend. It represents the 2014/15 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above table), and
prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by
revenue or other resources.
Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this
borrowing need. Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet the
capital plans and cash flow requirements. This may be sourced through borrowing from
external bodies (such as the Government, through the Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] or
the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the Council.
Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed
to rise indefinitely. Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly
charged to revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual
revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision – MRP, to reduce the CFR. This is
effectively a repayment of the non-Housing Revenue Account (HRA) borrowing need (there
is no statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital
commitments. External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not
change the CFR.
The total CFR can also be reduced by:




the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital
receipts); or
charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a Voluntary
Revenue Provision (VRP).

The Council’s 2014/15 MRP Policy (as required by CLG Guidance) was approved as part of
the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2014/15 on 06/03/2014.
The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator. It
includes PFI and leasing schemes on the balance sheet, which increase the Council’s
borrowing need. No borrowing is actually required against these schemes as a borrowing
facility is included in the contract (if applicable).

Page 57

8

CFR: General Fund

31 March
2014
Actual
£000

31 March
2015
Budget
£000

31 March
2015
Actual
£000

203,619

223,562

175,929

-

18,268

-

(25,188)

(6,388)

(4,445)

(2,502)

(2,864)

(2,864)

175,929

232,578

168,620

31 March
2014
Actual
£000

31 March
2015
Budget
£000

31 March
2015
Actual
£000

175,841

183,555

180,479

7,531

4,755

3,426

(2,893)

-

(2,618)

-

-

-

180,479

188,310

181,287

Opening balance
Add unfinanced capital expenditure (as
above)
Less MRP/VRP*
Less PFI & finance lease repayments
Closing balance

CFR : HRA
Opening balance
Add unfinanced capital expenditure (as
above)
Less VRP*
Less PFI & finance lease repayments
Closing balance

* Includes voluntary application of capital receipts

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR, and
by the authorised limit.
Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the
medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital
financing requirement in the preceding year (2014/15) plus the estimates of any additional
capital financing requirement for the current (2015/16) and next two financial years. This
essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. This
indicator allowed the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital
needs in 2014/15. The table below highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against
the CFR. The Council has complied with this prudential indicator.

GENERAL FUND

31 March 2014
Actual
£000

31 March 2015
Budget
£000

31 March 2015
Actual
£000

Gross borrowing position

158,585

154,427

159,428

CFR

175,929

232,578

168,620

Page 58

9

HRA

31 March 2014

31 March 2015

31 March 2015

Actual

Budget

Actual

£000

£000

£000

Gross borrowing position

160,874

158,641

158,648

CFR

180,479

188,310

181,287

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3
of the Local Government Act 2003. Once this has been set, the Council does not have the
power to borrow above this level. The table below demonstrates that during 2014/15 the
Council has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of
the Council during the year. Periods where the actual position is either below or over the
boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached.
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of
investment income) against the net revenue stream.

GENERAL FUND

2014/15
£000

Authorised limit

242,578

Maximum gross borrowing position

159,428

Operational boundary

232,578

Average gross borrowing position

155,787

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream

3.51%

2014/15
£000

HRA
Authorised limit

193,552

Maximum gross borrowing position

160,861

Operational boundary

193,552

Average gross borrowing position

160,266

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream

15.51%

Page 59

10

3. Treasury Position as at 31 March 2015
The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management service in
order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for investments and
to manage risks within all treasury management activities. Procedures and controls to achieve
these objectives are well established both through member reporting detailed in the summary,
and through officer activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. At the end
of 2014/15 the Council‘s treasury (excluding borrowing by PFI and finance leases) position was as
follows:

TABLE 1

31 March
31 March
2014
Rate/ Average 2015
Rate/ Average
Principal Return Life yrs. Principal Return
Life
£000
£000

Fixed rate borrowing:
-PWLB

208,843

4.79%

17.5

205,345

4.81%

17.2

-Market

45,391

4.82%

52.2

50,369

4.38%

51.2

Total debt

254,234

4.79%

255,715

4.72%

CFR*
Over / (under)
borrowing
Investments:

291,183

287,546

(36,949)

(31,831)

- in house

143,731

- with managers
Total investments

0.66%

0.8

157,946

0.89

0.8

0.66%

0.8

157,946

0.89

0.8

N/a
143,731

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows:

31 March 2014
Actual
£000

2014/15
original limits
£000

31 March 2015
Actual
£000

3,519

323

5,324

324

324

324

24 months and within 5 years

13,503

16,592

16,592

5 years and within 10 years

13,888

20,238

20,238

10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years

48,479

42,128

42,128

40,951

37,776

37,776

30 years and within 40 years

23,552

44,731

44,731

110,018

88,602

88,602

Under 12 months*
12 months and within 24 months

40 years and over 50 years
*includes 5.0m temporary loan

Page 60

11

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows:

Investments
Longer than 1 year
Under 1 year
Total

2013/14
Actual
£000

2014/15
Estimate
£000

2014/15
Actual
£000

10,000
133,731
143,731

10,000
36,430
46,430

20,000
137,946
157,946

4. The Strategy for 2014/15
The expectation for interest rates within the strategy for 2014/15 anticipated low but rising
Bank Rate (starting in quarter 1 of 2015), and gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed
borrowing rates during 2014/15. Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the
cheaper form of borrowing over the period. Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the
2008 financial crisis promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to
be dominated by low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns
compared to borrowing rates.
In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone borrowing to avoid the cost of
holding higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.
The main rating agencies, Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s removed the implied
Government support they use in assessing financial institutions. As a result of these changes
the council changed its counterparty selection criteria to rely on the short and long term
ratings in its assessment of financial institutions.
During the year Council agreed to prepay up to two years of pension contributions
equivalent to £33.0m (actual transaction in 2015/16).

5. The Economy and Interest Rates
The original market expectation at the beginning of 2014/15 was for the first increase in
Bank Rate to occur in quarter 1 2015 as the unemployment rate had fallen much faster than
expected through the Bank of England’s initial forward guidance target of 7%. In May,
however, the Bank revised its forward guidance. A combination of very weak pay rises and
inflation above the rate of pay rises meant that consumer disposable income was still being
eroded and in August the Bank halved its forecast for pay inflation in 2014 from 2.5% to
1.25%. Expectations for the first increase in Bank Rate therefore started to recede as growth
was still heavily dependent on buoyant consumer demand. During the second half of 2014
financial markets were caught out by a halving of the oil price and the collapse of the peg
between the Swiss franc and the euro. Fears also increased considerably that the ECB was
going to do too little too late to ward off the threat of deflation and recession in the
Eurozone. In mid-October, financial markets had a major panic for about a week. By the

Page 61

12

end of 2014, it was clear that inflation in the UK was going to head towards zero in 2015 and
possibly even turn negative. In turn, this made it clear that the MPC would have great
difficulty in starting to raise Bank Rate in 2015 while inflation was around zero and so market
expectations for the first increase receded back to around quarter 3 of 2016.
Gilt yields were on a falling trend for much of the last eight months of 2014/15 but were
then pulled in different directions by increasing fears after the anti-austerity parties won
power in Greece in January; developments since then have increased fears that Greece
could be heading for an exit from the euro. While the direct effects of this would be
manageable by the EU and ECB, it is very hard to quantify quite what the potential knock on
effects would be on other countries in the Eurozone once the so called impossibility of a
country leaving the EZ had been disproved. Another downward pressure on gilt yields was
the announcement in January that the ECB would start a major programme of quantitative
easing, purchasing EZ government and other debt in March. On the other hand, strong
growth in the US caused an increase in confidence that the US was well on the way to
making a full recovery from the financial crash and would be the first country to start
increasing its central rate, probably by the end of 2015. The UK could be closely following it
due to strong growth over both 2013 and 2014 and good prospects for a continuation into
2015 and beyond

6. Borrowing Rates in 2014/15
PWLB certainty maturity borrowing rates ( Preferential Rates for Local Authorities) - the graphs
and table for PWLB rates below, show, for a selection of maturity periods, the average borrowing
rates, the high and low points in rates, spreads and individual rates at the start and the end of the
financial year.

Page 62

13

7. Borrowing Outturn for 2014/15
Treasury Borrowing
Borrowing - – The council’s external debt as at 31/03/2015 was £255.7m. There were no
new long term loans drawn in 2014/15, temporary loans drawn in year was £10.0m. The
Council repaid loans of £3,519k in long term loans and 5.0m in temporary loans in the year.
No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB
new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

8. Investment Rates in 2014/15
Bank Rate remained at its historic low of 0.5% throughout the year; it has now remained
unchanged for six years. Market expectations as to the timing of the start of monetary tightening
started the year at quarter 1 2015 but then moved back to around quarter 3 2016 by the end of
the year. Deposit rates remained depressed during the whole of the year, primarily due to the
effects of the Funding for Lending Scheme.

Page 63

14

9. Investment Outturn for 2014/15
Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by CLG guidance, which has been
implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council on 06/03/2014. This
policy sets out the approach for choosing investment counterparties, and is based on credit
ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional market
data (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc.).
The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the Council had
no liquidity difficulties. Council agreed in the mid-year 2014/15 to prepay pension contributions
which would be undertaken in the ensuing year 2015/16.
Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and cash flow
monies. The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows:

31 March 2014
£000

31 March 2015
£000

8,929
49,675
66,199
4,726
5,699
15,729
150,957

18,231
31,415
68,916
7,480
6,256
16,238
148,536

31 March 2014
£000
4,690

31 March 2015
£000
5,380

HRA Balance

3,283

3,915

Total

7,973

9,295

Balance Sheet Resources: General fund
Capital receipts
Unapplied Capital Grants
Earmarked Reserves
Grant Reserves
Provisions
General fund Balance
Total
Balance Sheet Resources: HRA
Earmarked Reserves

Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an average balance of £169.5m of
internally managed funds. The internally managed funds generated interest of £1.2m equivalent
to an average rate of 0.71%. The comparable performance indicator is the average 6mth LIBID
rate, which was 0.68%. This compares with a budget assumption of £46.4m investment balances
earning an average rate of 0.60%.

Page 64

Agenda Item 10
LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST
Committee/Date:

Council 9 July 2015

Report Title:

Employment Procedure Rules

Directorate:

Legal and Governance

Contact Details

Daniel Fenwick, Monitoring Officer
Daniel.fenwick@walthamforest.gov.uk

Wards affected:

None specifically

Public Access
Appendices

Open
Appendix A – Proposed Employment Procedure Rules

Appendix B – Terms of Reference of the
Independent Panel for Statutory Officer Dismissals
1.

SUMMARY

1.1.

This report sets out the proposed amendments to the Council’s
Employment Procedure Rules (“EPRs”) in Part 8 of the Constitution to
reflect changes made by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 (“the Regulations”).

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

For the reasons set out in this report, Council is requested to:
(a) adoption of the amended Employment Procedure Rules as set out
in Appendix A.
(b) agree the establishment of an Independent Panel as an advisory
committee of the Council with the terms of reference set out in
Appendix B;
(c) delegate to the Chief Operating Officer (or her nominee) the
authority to make arrangements for the appointment of independent
panel members and to appoint those members and to amend any
HR policies as appropriate to reflect these changes and to provide
training to the new independent panel members
(d) amend the Members Allowance Scheme so that independent panel
members are paid at the same rate as the current independent
member appointed for the purposes of the Code of Conduct.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1.

The Council’s Employment Procedure Rules set out various
arrangements in respect of the employment of senior officers.
Currently, these provisions include mandatory standing orders in

Page 65

relation to the disciplining and dismissal of the three statutory officers;
the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. The
current Rules are based on the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) Regulations 2001 and provided that an independent
investigator must be appointed if it is proposed to discipline or dismiss
a statutory officer. The 2015 Regulations revoke these provisions as
CLG considered they were expensive and unnecessary and introduced
a purportedly simpler procedure that must be adopted by all local
authorities. The Regulations came into force on 11th May 2015 and
must be agreed at a Council’s first ordinary Council meeting after this
date.
4.

PROPOSALS

4.1.

In summary, the Regulations require:
4.1.1. Full Council will make the final decision to confirm the dismissal
of statutory officers and this decision cannot be delegated to a
committee.
4.1.2. Where it is proposed to dismiss an officer, a panel of
independent members must act as an advisory committee
whose recommendations must be considered by full Council
(provision is also made to limit the expenses of panel
members).
4.1.3. Independent members are appointed in accordance with the
requirements of s.28 of the Localism Act 2011, i.e. those for the
Code of Conduct for Councillors.
4.1.4. The Council must also take into account any investigation report
and any submissions made by the affected officer.

4.2.

The previous protection for disciplinary action short of dismissal is
removed and the independent panel has no statutory role. This does
not affect the processes relating to any other senior officers.

4.3.

The proposed amendments to the EPRs are set out in Appendix A and
the Committee is proposed to recommend these recommendations to
full Council. Some additional amendments to update the EPRs are
also set out in Appendix A.

The Disciplinary Process & Role of the Independent Panel
4.4.

If the Council is proposing to discipline or dismiss a statutory officer,
the following process will be followed:
4.4.1. A Staffing Committee sub-committee will decide whether or not a
matter will be investigated and appoint an investigator;
4.4.2. The Staffing Committee will receive the report and having
considered the relevant evidence and any representations made

Page 66

by the officer will make recommendations whether or not to
discipline or dismiss the officer
4.4.3. If a decision is made to discipline but not dismiss the officer, the
sanctions will be implemented subject to an appeal to a different
sub-committee of the Staffing Committee;
4.4.4. If there is a recommendation to dismiss the officer, a meeting of
the independent panel will be held to consider the matter and to
make its recommendations to full Council;
4.4.5. Following 4.4.4., no less than 20 days after the independent
panel meeting the dismissal is referred to full Council to confirm
the decision whether or not to dismiss taking into account the
investigation, the independent panel’s views and any
representations made by the officer.
4.5.

It is proposed that a Panel of three members will be established and it
is proposed that the current independent member, Daniel Fluskey, is
invited to be part of the Panel following the process below. The Terms
of Reference of the Panel are set out at Appendix B. It will form an
advisory committee of the Council comprising only independent
members. Independent members cannot be: current members,
coopted members or officers of the authority; or a relative or close
friend of a member or officer; or a member of the authority in the
previous 5 years. Panel member applicants should be appointed on
merit and relevant experience (e.g. of HR and disciplinary processes)
but the Council is also obliged to invite successful applicants who are
borough residents at first instance. The Chief Operating Officer will
arrange for training of the panel members in Council disciplinary
procedures for senior staff.

4.6.

It is recommended that Mr Fluskey is invited to be appointed as an
independent panel member and the Director of Governance will write to
him. Further appointments can only be made after an externally
advertised recruitment process, the applicant has submitted an
application to the Council and a majority of Council members (i.e. 31)
have approved the appointment at full Council. The Audit and
Governance Committee is therefore asked to recommend to full
Council that the Chief Operating Officer is delegated authority to
undertake this exercise and recommend appointees to full Council.

4.7.

Finally, the regulations limit the payment of expenses to independent
members to those currently paid to independent members appointed
under s.28 of the Localism Act 2011. It is recommended that this level
of payment is agreed, which is approximately £700 pa.

5.

CONSULTATION

5.1.

This report has been prepared in consultation with Human Resources.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

Page 67

6.1.

Finance, Value for Money and Risk
6.1.1. The costs of the change will be met within existing budgets. Part
of the Government’s logic is that it will reduce the costs of the
previous process, which required the appointment of an
independent investigator.

6.2.

Legal
6.2.1. The body of the report contains the legal implications. The
regulations are mandatory and so the Council has no option but
to adopt the new regime as part of its Constitution. The Council
is, pursuant to section 9P of the Local Government Act 2000,
under a statutory obligation to keep the Constitution up to date.
The regulations must be adopted at the next Full Council
meeting, as it is the first ordinary meeting after 11th May 2015.
The process outlined will also ensure compliance with
employment law.

6.3.

Equalities and Diversity
6.3.1. The regulations are mandatory and must be adopted.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION (as defined by Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985)
None

Page 68

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

Part 8
Employment Procedure Rules
1.

Recruitment and appointment

1.1.

Declarations
1.1.1. The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for
appointment as an Officer to state in writing whether they are
related to an existing Councillor or Officer of the Council; or the
partner or ex-partner of such a person.
1.1.2. No candidate so related to a Councillor or an Officer will be
appointed without the authority of the relevant Chief Officer (as set
out in Appendix A) or an Officer nominated by him/her.

1.2.

Seeking councillors support for appointment
1.2.1. Subject to paragraph 1.2.3 below, the Council will disqualify any
applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the support of any
Councillor for any appointment with the Council. The content of this
paragraph will be included in any recruitment information.
1.2.2. Subject to paragraph 1.2.3 below, no Councillor will seek support
for any person for any appointment with the Council.
1.2.3. Nothing in paragraphs 1.1.1 and 1.1.2 above will preclude a
Councillor from giving a written reference for a candidate for
submission with an application for appointment.

1.3.

Senior officer posts covered by these Rules
1.3.

Except where stated in these rules, Parts 2 to 8 apply to the
following posts: Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant
Chief Executive, Director, Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer,
Assistant Director, Divisional Director, or Head of Service post
reporting to the Chief Executive or a post that reports to the Chief
Executive. For the purposes of these rules, these posts will be
referred to as “Senior Officer Posts”. The current list of posts is set

Page 1
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 69

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

out at Appendix A but failure to include a post on this list will not
exclude it from the provisions of these rules.
1.3.

Senior officer posts covered by these Rules
1.3.1. Except where stated in these rules, Parts 2 to 8 apply to the
following posts: Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant
Chief Executive, Director, Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer,
Assistant Director, Divisional Director, or Head of Service post
reporting to the Chief Executive or a post that reports to the Chief
Executive. For the purposes of these rules, these posts will be
referred to as “Senior Officer Posts”. The current list of posts is set
out at Appendix A but failure to include a post on this list will not
exclude it from the provisions of these rulesExcept where stated in
these rules, Parts 2 to 8 apply to the following posts: Chief
Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive,
Director, Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Assistant
Director, Divisional Director, or Head of Service post reporting to
the Chief Executive or a post that reports to the Chief Executive.
For the purposes of these rules, these posts will be referred to as
“Senior Officer Posts”.

The current list of posts is set out at

Appendix A but failure to include on this list a post that is at the
same level will not exclude it from the provisions of these rules.

2.

Recruitment

2.1.

Where the Council proposes to recruit and appoint to a Senior Officer Post
and it is not proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from
among their existing Officers, the Council will:
2.1.1. draw up a statement specifying:
2.1.1.1. the duties of the post concerned; and
2.1.1.2. any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to
be appointed;

Page 2
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 70

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

2.1.1.3. make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a
way as is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who
are qualified to apply for it; and
2.1.1.4. make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned
in paragraph (1) to be sent to any person on request.
2.1.2. The Chief Operating Officer is responsible for keeping this list up to
date in the light of changes to the Council’s organisational structure.

3.

Staffing Committee

3.1.

The Council has appointed a Staffing Committee (the Committee) to
exercise all of its powers in relation to the appointment, discipline,
grievances and dismissal of Senior Officer Posts, where not restricted or
prohibited by law. References to the Committee include a sub-committee
of the Committee established by it to carry out its functions.

3.2.

The Committee must include at least one Member of the Cabinet. Where
the Committee is considering the appointment or the dismissal of any
Officer (excluding the dismissal of a Statutory Officer – see below), the
Committee must also include at least one member of an Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

Page 3
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 71

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

4.

Appointment of Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)

4.1.

The full Council will determine whether to approve the appointment of the
Head of Paid Service following a recommendation by the Staffing
Committee.

4.2.

The Council may only make or approve a Head of Paid Service
appointment, where no well-founded objection has been made by any
member of the Cabinet (see Part 8).

5.

Appointment to other Senior Officer Posts

5.1.

The Staffing Committee has delegated authority to appoint all other senior
officer posts, but an offer of employment shall only be made where no
material or well-founded objection from a Member of Cabinet has been
received (see part 8).

5.2.

Officers not covered by these Rules: Other than statutory assistants to
political groups, all other appointments are the responsibility of the Chief
Executive, as Head of Paid Service or her/his nominees, and may not be
made by Councillors. (The Council’s General Scheme of Delegation sets
out the delegation of these powers).

5.2.1. Assistants to political groups. Appointment of an assistant to a political
group shall be made in accordance with the wishes of that political group
(currently no such posts exist).
Note: The Council is not able to make any political assistant appointment
until the Council has allocated posts to all political groups which qualify for
one.

The Council is required to consider the allocation of a political

assistant to a political group in accordance with the relevant regulations.
Non-qualifying groups are not allowed political assistants. More than one
advisor per group is not permitted.

Page 4
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 72

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

6.

Disciplinary action against and dismissal of the head of
paid service, monitoring officer or chief finance officer
(“the statutory officers”).

6.1.

The Staffing Committee has power to decide whether to investigate any
allegation of misconduct by a statutory officer, all matters relating to the
conduct of the investigation and may suspend the statutory officer on full
pay whilst any investigation and/or any subsequent disciplinary process
takes place.

6.2.

The Committee will consider the investigation report, any other evidence it
considers relevant and the officer will have an opportunity to state their
case.

6.3.

The Committee will consider whether disciplinary action is needed and, if
so, the appropriate sanction. Where the proposed sanction is less than
dismissal, the Committee will instruct officers to implement any sanctions.

6.4.

Where the Committee proposes dismissal:
6.4.1. a Statutory Officer Independent Panel (the Panel) which will receive
its advice, views or recommendations.
6.4.2. The Panel will consider the dismissal and may give its advice,
views or recommendations to Full Council;
6.4.3. The Panel must be established at least 20 working days before the
full Council meeting.
6.4.4. Full Council will decide whether or not to approve the dismissal
taking into account: the investigation and its conclusions; the
Panel’s

advice,

views

and/or

recommendations;

and

any

representations by the relevant officer.

7.

Disciplinary action against and dismissal of other Senior
Officers (“non-statutory officers”)

7.1.

The Staffing Committee has power to decide whether to investigate any
allegation of misconduct by a non-statutory officer, all matters relating to

Page 5
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 73

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

the conduct of the investigation and may suspend the statutory officer on
full pay whilst any investigation and/or any determine any subsequent
disciplinary process that takes place.
7.2.

The Committee has power to impose any sanction up to and including
dismissal, subject to Section 8 below.

7.3.

Where required, the Committee will consider an appeal against a
disciplinary sanction or dismissal of a non-statutory officer.

8.

Cabinet Objections to Appointments or Dismissals

8.1.

Where a Panel makes the decision to appoint or dismiss a senior officer
post any Cabinet member has the right to object before an appointment is
made or a notice of dismissal is given.

8.2.

The Chief Executive will inform all Cabinet members about the proposed
appointment or dismissal in writing. The Chief Executive will advise:
8.2.1. The name of the person who is the subject of the proposed
appointment or dismissal
8.2.2. Any other particulars relevant to the appointment or dismissal which
the Panel has notified to the Chief Executive
8.2.3. That objections must be received within five working days; and
8.2.4. That any objections must be made to the Leader of the Cabinet.

8.3.

The appointment or dismissal can only be made if:
8.3.1. There is no objection from the Members of the Cabinet within five
working days; or
8.3.2. An objection is received and considered by the Panel but is not
considered to be material or well founded.

9.

Organisational Restructuring

Page 6
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 74

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

9.1.

Restructuring within a single directorate is the responsibility of the relevant
Executive Director.

9.2.

Restructuring involving more than one dDirectorate in a material way (to
be determined by the Director of Governance) is the responsibility of the
Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)

9.3.

Council-wide restructuring will require Cabinet approval.

Restructuring

that affects all directorates in a material way (to be determined by the
Director of Governance) is the responsibility of Cabinet and Cabinet must
also approve any changes to the senior management structure (see
Cabinet Terms of Reference).

Page 7
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 75

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

10.

Annual Pay Policy Statement

10.1. Section 39 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to prepare and
publish a pay policy statement for the following financial year. The
statement will set out the authority’s policies relating to remuneration of
chief officers and its lowest paid officers; and the relationship between the
remuneration of its chief officers and that of its employees who are not
chief officers.
10.2. The annual pay policy statement will be adopted by Council before the end
of March of each year. The Council has the power to amend the statement
in-year.

Page 8
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 76

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 8 Employment Procedure Rules

APPENDIX A
MEMBER-LEVEL APPOINTMENT POSTS
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive: Families (statutory director of Children and Adult
Services)
Director of Housing and Growth
Director of Housing and Regeneration
Director of Finance (Chief Finance Officer)
Chief Operating Officer
Director of Neighbourhoods & Commissioning
Director of Governance (Monitoring Officer)
Assistant Chief Executive
Director of Public Health
Divisional Director: Adult Social Care
Divisional Director: Children and Families
Divisional Director: Education Improvement
Divisional Director: Strategic Commissioning
Divisional Director: Business Employment & Skills
Divisional Director: Public Realm
Divisional Director: Housing and Development
Assistant Director: Financial Planning
Assistant Director: Accountancy, Exchequer and Pensions
Assistant Director: Procurement and Commissioning
Assistant Director: Audit Anti-Fraud & Risk Management
Assistant Director: Asset Management & Delivery
Assistant Director: Organisational Development & Business Change
Head of Troubled Families – temporary to 2015
Public Health Consultants – 2.5 posts
Chief Information Officer
Non-Chief Officer posts that are paid in accordance with the grading structure
relevant to the post that pay similar levels to Chief Officer roles.
Executive Head of Pupil Referral Unit
HM Coroner

Page 9
Part 8 Employment Procedure Rules
Updated July 2015

Page 77

STATUTORY OFFICER INDEPENDENT PANEL
1.

Powers

1.1.

The independent panel (the Panel) is established under the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 (“the
Regulations”) to act as an advisory committee to the authority where the
Staffing Committee has recommended the dismissal of a statutory officer.

1.2.

For these purposes, a statutory officer means either the head of paid service
(Chief Executive), the chief finance officer (Director of Finance) or the
monitoring officer (Director of Governance).

2.

Membership

2.1.

The Panel is an advisory committee established under s.102(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 solely comprising non-elected members.

2.2.

The Panel will comprise of at least 3 persons falling within the definition of
independent person for the purposes of s.28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.

3.

Meetings

3.1.

The Panel will meet when the Staffing Committee proposes the dismissal of a
statutory officer.

3.2.

The Panel will consider the matter and may make its views, advice or
recommendations to full Council.

3.3.

The Panel must be established no less than 20 working days before it reports
to full Council.

3.4.

There will be no standing chair of the Panel and the chair of a panel will be
elected as the first item of business when it meets.

4.

Quorum

4.1.

The quorum will be two members.

Page 79

Agenda Item 11

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST
Committee/Date:

Council
9th July 2015

Report Title:

Revised Terms of Reference for Planning
Committee

Directorate:

Regeneration and Growth

Contact Details

David Scourfield
Acting Assistant Director, Planning

Wards affected:

All

Public Access

Open

Appendices

Appendix 1: Terms of Reference, Planning
Committee
Appendix 2: Report to Audit & Governance
Committee

1.

SUMMARY
1.1.

2.

RECOMMENDATION
1.1.

2.

The Planning Code Of Practice has recently been amended to
reflect changes to the way in which the pre-application process
is carried out for major regenerations schemes. This change will
allow developer presentations to the planning committee on
major schemes above a certain threshold and to effect this
change an amendment to the Committee’s Terms of Reference
is necessary.

To adopt the revised Terms of Reference for the Planning
Committee at Appendix 1

BACKGROUND
2.1.

At its meeting on 25th June 2015 the Council’s Audit and
Governance Committee agreed changes to the Planning Code
of Practice in order to allow developers to present their preapplication planning schemes to members of the Planning
Committee at scheduled meetings of the Committee.. The
revised Code details the way in which presentations will be
conducted at Planning Committee and emphasises that
members can only ask factual questions and not express
opinions on the scheme itself.

Page 81

3.

PROPOSAL
3.1.

The Terms of Reference of the Planning Committee need to be
altered to reflect the changes to the pre-application planning
process as contained in the recently amended Planning Code of
Practice.

3.2.

Proposed Paragraph 6 of the revised Terms of Reference
introduces the new power for Planning Committee to hear preapplication presentations and sets a threshold for the size of
schemes to be permitted to present to Planning Committee.
This threshold is the same as that presented in the revised
Planning Code of Conduct (Para 3.9 of the Code) and allows for
presentations on pre-application regeneration schemes where
those schemes contain:
100 or more residential units and/or
1000 sq m of commercial floorspace
This will be at the discretion of Head of Development
Management and Building Control where such a presentation
would be of benefit to the Planning Committee taking into
consideration the regeneration significance of the scheme.

4.

SUSTAINBABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY PRIORITIES
OTHER NATIONAL OR LOCAL POLICIES OR STRATEGIES
4.1

5.

There are not direct implications from this proposal, which will
help support the Council’s democratic function and regeneration
priorities.

CONSULTATION
6.1

6

(AND

No specific community consultation is required in relation to this
proposal .

IMPLICATIONS
6.1

Finance, Value for Money and Risk

6.1.1 There are no specific financial implications in relation to this
proposal
6.2

Legal

6.2.1 The Terms of References of the Planning Committee form part
of the Constitution and as such any alteration needs to be
approved by Full Council. Members of the Planning Committee
can be involved with development schemes pre-application
provided they do not express an opinion on the scheme that

Page 82

could suggest they have pre-determined the application and
provided their minds are kept open at all times.
6.3

Equalities and Diversity
6.3.1 No direct implications

6.4

Sustainability (including climate change, health, crime and
disorder
6.4.1 No direct implications identified

6.5

Council Infrastructure (e.g. human resources,
accommodation or IT issues
6.5.1 No direct implications identified

Page 83

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 7 Terms of Reference

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Membership
5 members to be appointed by Full Council.

Delegated Powers
The Planning Committee shall have the following powers:
1. Save as set out in 2 below, where an application or other matter in
respect of:


Planning,



Advertising,



Conservation areas,



Listed buildings,



Tree and hedgerow protection,



Hazardous substances,



Enforcement,



Training and consultation on planning matters,



Any other functions contained in the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990, Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 or the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 and
related legislation,



satisfies one or more of the following criteria, it shall be referred
to the Planning Committee:
 Where it is requested by a member of the Council that the
Planning Committee consider a matter;
 Where major matters of Planning policy are involved;
 Where the Council would be involved in any financial
liability;
 Where there is significant public interest; or
 Where

the

Executive

Director

of

Environment

&

Regeneration considers that it should be referred to the
Planning Committee for consideration.
Page 1
Part 7- Terms of Reference- Planning Committee
Updated August 2012

Page 85

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 7 Terms of Reference

2.

The Planning Committee has no delegated power to approve
Development Plan Documents or joint arrangements under section 2831 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. Full Council
must exercise these powers.

3. To make recommendations to Cabinet in relation to the allocation of
Historic Building Grants those are above the financial threshold for Key
Decisions.
4. To make recommendations to the relevant Executive Director in
relation to the allocation of Historic Building Grants that are below the
financial threshold for Key Decisions but above £1000.00
5. Notwithstanding the above, prior notification applicants shall not be
referred to the Planning Committee where insufficient time is available
to enable Committee consideration prior to the determination deadline.
Where there is an urgent need for a decision to be taken outside the
normal cycle of meetings, every practical effort shall be made to
arrange an extraordinary meeting of the Planning Committee.
However, if there is insufficient time for this to be done, authority to
consider such applications is delegated to the Executive Director of
Environment & Regeneration, in consultation with the Chair of the
Planning Committee, and the Vice Chair.
6. To receive and consider presentations by Developers or their
appointed agents on pre-application regeneration schemes where
those schemes contain:
100 or more residential units and/or
1000 sq m of commercial floorspace
and the Head of Development Management and Building Control
believes that such a presentation would be of benefit to the Planning
Committee taking into consideration the regeneration significance of
the scheme.

Page 2
Part 7- Terms of Reference- Planning Committee
Updated August 2012

Page 86

Constitution of London Borough of Waltham Forest
PART 7 Terms of Reference

Delegation to Officers
7. The Executive Director of Environment & Regeneration is authorised to
undertake all other functions in relation to the above matters and
functions, subject to paragraph 2 and the Director of Governance or his
representative being satisfied with the evidence before the service of
any Notices.
7. The Executive Director of Environment & Regeneration is authorised to
delegate any of the above functions delegated to her/him in this
Constitution to other officers.

Page 3
Part 7- Terms of Reference- Planning Committee
Updated August 2012

Page 87

APPENDIX B

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST
Committee/Date:

Audit and Governance
25th June 2015

Report Title:

Revised Planning Code of Practice

Directorate:

Regeneration and Growth

Contact Details

David Scourfield
Acting Assistant Director, Planning

Wards affected:

All

Public Access

Open

Appendices

Appendix 1: Planning Code of Practice (June 2015)

1.

SUMMARY
1.1.

2.

RECOMMENDATION
1.1.

2.

The Planning Code of Conduct has been updated to introduce
the possibility of pre-application developer presentations to the
planning committee. The Code has also been revised to add
reference to new policies and to update the legislation referred
to therein.

To adopt the revised Planning Code of Practice at Appendix 1
in order to maintain high standards of probity and ensure
transparency in the planning application process.

BACKGROUND
2.1.

The Code was adopted on 18 October 2012 and incorporated
changes introduced by the Localism Act 2011 and the National
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

2.2.

The Council has long recognised the importance of engaging
with applicants and developer teams prior to the submission of
formal planning applications. The Development Management
Service has successfully offered a pre-application service for a
number of years, dealing with a variety of developments, from
local residents proposing extensions to residential properties
through to large regeneration schemes.

2.3.

A Development Management Customer Advice Note has been
prepared to clarify how this service will be offered and to draw
together existing practice under one document.

Page 89

APPENDIX B
2.4.

The Advice Note sets out the four principal services offered at
pre-application stage:
 Duty Planner Service (for domestic extensions)
 Correspondence Service (for more complicated domestic
proposals and small commercial extensions
 Meeting Service – for more complex developments
 Development Team Process – for the major regeneration
schemes

2.5.

The principal and most pressing need for change has been in
relation to the way in which major developments and
regeneration schemes are presented to members of the
planning Committee.

2.6.

It is proposed that major schemes (over 100 residential units
and/or commercial schemes with over 1000 sq. meters of
floorspace) will be presented to members of the Planning
Committee (at a meeting of the Planning Committee) during the
pre-application process on at least one occasion. The decision
to allow a presentation of any pre-application scheme to the
Planning Committee will however be at the discretion of officers.
The format for these presentations will be:

A short report prepared by Officers will be tabled as part
of the main agenda, setting out the details of the scheme

The Developer or representatives
presentation of no more than 15 minutes.

will

deliver

a


Members of the Planning Committee will have
approximately 15 minutes to question the developer on any
aspect of the scheme that needs factual clarification.

The minutes of the planning committee will note that a
presentation was given

3.

PROPOSAL
3.1.

The Planning Code of Conduct has been altered to reflect this
change to the pre-application process. In addition to updating
reference to officers and various legislation the Code presents
best practice in maintaining probity and transparency for
members throughout the process. The changes are relatively
minor but are nevertheless considered necessary.

3.2.

In particular the Code now advises (at Para 3.9 in relation to preapplication presentations) that ‘Members and officers must not

Page 90

APPENDIX B
express an opinion on the merits of a proposal or involve
themselves in any negotiations on the development and can ask
factual questions only’.
3.3.

4.

SUSTAINBABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY PRIORITIES
OTHER NATIONAL OR LOCAL POLICIES OR STRATEGIES
4.1

5.

(AND

There are not direct implications from this proposal, which will
help support the Council’s democratic function and regeneration
priorities.

CONSULTATION
6.1

6

Alterations to the Planning Committee’s Terms of Reference will
be sought so as to introduce the threshold schemes would have
to meet in order to be presented to the Planning Committee (as
set out in paragraph 2.6 above) and to set out who will have
authority to decide what schemes are presented to committee.

No specific community consultation is required in relation to this
proposal .

IMPLICATIONS
.
6.1

Finance, Value for Money and Risk
6.1.1 There are no specific financial implications in relation to
this proposal

6.2

Legal

6.2.1 The Planning Code is a non-statutory document that does not
form part of the Council’s Constitution, though some of its
elements must be followed. For example, the provisions of the
Planning Code relating to decision making (section 2) are
mandatory as are the requirements under the Members’ Code of
Conduct.
6.2.2. In other areas, the Planning Code reflects good practice. It
should therefore be followed, unless there are good reasons not
to.
6.2.3 Failure to comply with the Code’s provisions may expose the
Council to an award of costs on appeal and/or legal challenge of
its decision, and the member(s) involved may face a complaint to
the Monitoring Officer that s/he has breached the Code of
Conduct.
6.2.4 The Terms of References of the Planning Committee will need to
be amended to reflect the proposed threshold for pre-application
presentations to committee and to set out who will have authority

Page 91

APPENDIX B
to decide what schemes are actually presented to Committee.
The details of this alteration will need to be considered by Full
Council as the terms of reference form part of the Constitution.
6.3

Equalities and Diversity
6.3.1 No direct implications

6.4

Sustainability (including climate change, health, crime and
disorder
6.4.1 No direct implications identified

6.5

Council Infrastructure (e.g. human resources,
accommodation or IT issues
6.5.1 No direct implications identified

Page 92

London Borough of Waltham Forest

(updated June 2015 )

Planning Code of Practice
FOREWORD
This Code applies to all members when they are involved in the planning process.
Planning decisions affect the homes and livelihoods of residents, businesses and other
stakeholders, as well as impacting on the environment itself. They can be important and
controversial and those affected by a planning decision can and should expect high
standards of probity from the Council and a fair and accountable decision-making process.
This Code provides guidance to assist Members and officers on how to ensure these
standards are met. In doing so, it supplements the Members’ Code of Conduct. The
Code is divided into 2 parts:
•

Guidance on conduct and decision-making issues in planning matters; and

•

Guidance on Planning Committee procedure.

The Council adopted this Code on 18 October 2012. Advice on this Code is always
available from the Council’s Monitoring Officer and the officer responsible for development
management and their representatives.
This Code will be subject to annual review by the Audit and Governance Committee and/or
Planning Committee as appropriate.

Lucy Shomali
Acting Director, Regeneration and Growth
Daniel Fenwick
Director of Governance and Law

Page 93

Conduct and Decision Making
1

THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

1.1

The Code of Conduct for Members in Part 9 of the Council’s Constitution imposes
standards of conduct upon all Councillors. A failure to follow the Code of Conduct
can result in a sanction, including possible prosecution, fine of up to £5,000 and
disqualification for up to five years. Members are strongly advised to familiarise
themselves with the whole of the Code of Conduct.

1.2

The key provisions that arise in the planning field are:

1.3

•

To act solely in the public interest and never improperly to confer an advantage
or disadvantage on any person or improperly act to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, friends or close associates
(paragraph 3.1);

•

Declaring and registering interests (paragraphs 4 and 5);

•

Making decisions free from bias and where the outcome is not pre-determined
(Appendix 1);

•

Declaring gifts and hospitality.

Brief guidance on each of these provisions is set out below and examples are
provided in the case studies. Further sources of information can be found in
Section 8.
Declaring Interests

1.4

Members must declare any interests in a planning decision to ensure the Member’s
private interests do not interfere, and are not perceived as interfering, with their
public duties.
Pecuniary Interests
What is a pecuniary interest?

1.5

A disclosable pecuniary interest is any interest prescribed as such by regulations
issued by the Secretary of State (currently the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, the “Regulations”):
and
a) it is either the interest of the Member;
or
b) is the interest of their spouse or civil partner; a person with whom the
Member lives with husband or wife; or a person with whom the Member lives
with as if they were a civil partner
and
c) the Member is aware that the other person in (b) has the interest .
Other Pecuniary Interests

1.6

The Council has power to agree that other pecuniary interests not prescribed in the
Regulations must be registered by Members in accordance with this Code. Where
2

Page 94

the Council agrees other pecuniary interests must be registered, the provisions of
paragraph 1.7 regarding the declaration of interests and participation and voting in
meetings apply.
Some interests which are likely to arise in planning include:



A Member’s home or other property that they or their spouse / partner own, lease or
licence;
A Member’s job or employer’s interests, or those of his/her spouse/partner.

When must pecuniary interests be declared?
1.7

Where a planning application affects one or more of the interests at 1.5, the
affected member should:
 Disclose the interest at the start of the meeting when asked by the Chair or, at
the latest, when the Member becomes aware that an item relates to the interest;
and
 Withdraw from the meeting room for the relevant item, and
 Not participate or participate further in any discussion and / or vote on the matter
at the meeting.
Non-pecuniary Interests
What is a non-pecuniary interest?

1.8

The Council has power to agree that non-pecuniary interests must be registered by
Members in accordance with this Code. Details of non-pecuniary interests agreed
by the Council are set out in the Code of Conduct.
Note to Members: don’t forget that you must declare the interests of your spouse or civil
partner, or person with whom you are living as if spouses or civil partners. However, if you are
unaware of another person’s interest or it is reasonable for you not to be aware of the interest,
you will not be in breach of the Code by failing to declare it.

When must non-pecuniary interests be declared?
1.9

A member with a non-pecuniary interest must declare the interest at the start of the
meeting or when it becomes apparent.

1.10

Where the Council determines that non-pecuniary interests must be registered, the
provisions of paragraph 1.7 regarding the declaration of interests and participation
and voting in meetings apply, otherwise the member may remain in the meeting and
may participate in the matter and vote upon it.

1.11

However, the member should take into account the guidance note at Appendix 1 to
the Code of Conduct on bias and pre-determination with regard to participation in
meetings and seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or another lawyer where
appropriate.
Abuse of Position

1.12

Paragraph 3.1(a) of the Code of Conduct prohibits Members from using their
position to benefit or harm any person: When carrying out official duties, a Member
must “act solely in the public interest and never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person or improperly act to gain financial or material benefits
for themselves, their family, friends or close associates.”

3

Page 95

1.13

Planning decisions often have a significant effect on residents and other
stakeholders. Members must serve the whole community when making planning
decisions; they must consciously not use their vote to advantage or disadvantage
an individual or business. This includes using a vote to favour themselves, a
relative, friend or constituent; or to be overly influenced by a lobbying group. It also
includes doing something that adversely affects somebody or a group that a
Member dislikes or opposes.
Examples:
• Advancing your own or a friend or relative’s planning application.
• Requesting that planning committee consider an application that you, a relative or friend
opposes.
• Using visiting speaking rights to advance or oppose your interests or those of a friend or
relative.
Note to members: There is considerable crossover with the duty to declare interests and
seeking to obtain an improper advantage – in each of the cases above the Member risks
apparent bias, which could leave the decision open to challenge.

1.14

This rule only affects improper actions. It is perfectly proper for Members to
consider legitimate constituency and lobbying interests, so long as the final decision
in a meeting is based on an open consideration of all issues and proper planning
reasons. There is more guidance on these issues below.
Declaring Gifts and Hospitality

1.15

Councillors should also be very cautious about accepting gifts and hospitality,
particularly from developers. Members should bear in mind the public perception of
the receipt of any gifts, although at times some limited hospitality is unavoidable.

1.16

Members are required to register the receipt of gifts and hospitality over the value of
£25 and the identity of the donor, and to declare these details at the meeting where
they relate to the business to be conducted. This relates only to gifts/hospitality
received by Members in their capacity as councillors within the three years prior to
the meeting. The interests must be registered with the Council’s Monitoring Officer
within 28 days.

1.17

Members will find a form on the Members’ Portal on the Intranet site. Members
may, of course, refuse gifts or donate them to charity. The latter would still require
a declaration that the gift was received.

2

DECISION MAKING

2.1

Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

2.2

The Development Plan is the Core Strategy (March 2012),Development
Management Policy (Oct 2013) and The London Plan (2011) (as amended), and in
some locations the Lee Valley Park Development Framework. Where there is a
Neighbourhood Plan in place, this is also part of the Development Plan.

2.3

Any issue relating to the use and development of land is capable of being a material
consideration. Specific issues which are always material considerations are
2.3.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
2.3.2 Local Finance Considerations

2.4

When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive approach
that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the
4

Page 96

National Planning Policy Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants
jointly to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever
possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, social and
environmental conditions in the area.
2.5

Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Development Plan (and,
where relevant, with polices in neighbourhood plans) will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

2.6

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether:
2.6.1 Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in
the National Planning Policy Framework taken as a whole; or
2.6.2 Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be
restricted.

2.7

Reasons must be given for either the grant or a refusal of a planning permission.
(Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015 (SI 2015/595), art.35

2.8

The reasons to be given, where permission is refused or conditions imposed must:
(1) be stated clearly and precisely; (2) be full; (3) specify all policies and proposals
in the development plan which are relevant to the decision; and (4) give details of
any direction given, or opposing view expressed, by the Secretary of State or a
Government Department.

2.9

If Members intend to make a decision contrary to the officer’s recommendation, it is
particularly important to ensure that Members are clear about the reasons for their
decision before voting. Members are strongly advised to seek officers’ advice in
these cases.
Predetermination and Bias

2.10

Those applying for planning permission, or objecting to a development, can expect
that Planning Committee members will be unbiased and will not pre-determine the
application.

2.11

The declaration of interests under the Code of Conduct addresses pecuniary and
other interests but not the state of mind and/or prejudices of Members. The courts,
however, have repeatedly quashed planning decisions where Members are held to
have pre-determined the decision, irrespective of the fact they did not stand to gain
financially or otherwise from the decision.

2.12

Pre-determination is a form of bias. Put simply, it means that a Member has made
up their mind on a planning application before hearing the evidence. It is common
and perfectly lawful for a Member to have strong views on an application; this is
known as predisposition. Predisposition is lawful. The key issue is that the
member ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration
of all the other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports,
supporting documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member
retains an “open mind”.

2.13

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a
decision will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination
5

Page 97

“just because” a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may
take in relation to a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done
something more than indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or
predetermination so it is important that advice is sought where this may be the
case.
2.14

Members who also sit on other Council bodies, such as conservation or scrutiny
groups/panels that have discussed and formed a view on a planning matter should
also seek advice on whether they may have pre-determined the matter.

2.15

Members who consider they may have predetermined an application should seek
advice from the Monitoring Officer or his representative before participating in the
meeting. They should declare any predetermination in the meeting and not take
part in the relevant item(s).

2.16

Members who are lobbied are at risk of pre-determining a planning application and
are referred to section 3 of this guidance. If a court finds that a member of a
committee pre-determined an issue, they can quash the Council’s decision. The
Member is also at risk of a complaint under the Code of Conduct by allowing
themselves to be placed under a financial or other obligation to outside individuals
or organisations that might seek to influence them in the performance of their official
duties.

2.17

Members must be minded of the above advice at all times which includes when
attending presentations by Developers pursuant to paragraph 3.9 below. When
attending such presentations it is vital that Members restrict themselves to factual
questions and do not indicate a view on the scheme.

3

LOBBYING

3.1

Those who may be affected by a decision on a planning application – applicants,
developers, objectors, other councillors and pressure groups - will often seek to
influence its outcome through the lobbying of their elected ward councillors or
Planning Committee members. Lobbying is a normal and legitimate part of the
political process but, unless all the parties concerned exercise care and common
sense, it can lead to Members’ impartiality and integrity being called into question.
How to Deal with Lobbying

3.2

Members must keep their minds open when considering a planning application.
The intention of lobbying is to try to make a Member vote in a particular way on a
decision. In dealing with lobbying, Members can listen to the views of their
constituents and other stakeholders but must retain their independent judgement
and serve the community as a whole when in Planning Committee.

3.3

This is not an easy task but the following guidance will assist:
•

Members should tell lobbyists politely that, as they sit on the Planning
Committee, they cannot express any views on an application’s merits before the
meeting or agree to vote in a particular way.

•

Members can listen to what lobbyists have to say but then should direct them to
the relevant planning officers and provide advice on how to contact officers.

•

Written representations and petitions should be directed to, or forwarded to, the
relevant planning officers.

•

Members should not enter into a debate on the merits of the application, as this
may lead to comments being misinterpreted.
6

Page 98

•

Lobbied Members should seek advice if they consider it may affect their ability to
determine an application fairly.

•

Members should declare any lobbying at the relevant planning meeting.

These requirements also apply to Community forums, when the merits of specific
developments are discussed. Planning Committee members should explain that
they cannot participate in the discussion if they intend to sit on the Planning
Committee when any subsequent application is to be determined.
Membership of Lobby Groups
3.4

3.5

Members involved in planning decisions should take care when joining and being
active in lobby groups. When considering whether membership of a lobby group
could create the perception of bias or pre-determination of the matter, Members
should consider the following factors:
•

The nature of the matter being discussed;

•

The nature of your involvement in the group;

•

The publicly expressed views of the lobbying group;

•

What the Member has said or done in relation to the particular issue.

Membership and involvement in a lobby group – particularly a leading role in a
campaign – can give rise to the risk of predetermination. Members are encouraged
to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before participating in planning
decisions where membership of a lobby group is relevant.
The Party Whip & Lobbying by Councillors

3.6

Political party whipping can be seen as a form of lobbying and is inappropriate in
Planning Committee meetings. Lobbying by councillors should be dealt with in the
same way as other lobbying.
Pre-application Discussions

3.7

Pre-application discussions are a normal part of the planning process and can be of
considerable benefit to both parties.

3.8

However, if Councillors are involved, such discussions can become, or be seen
(especially by objectors) to become, part of a lobbying process. Pre-application
discussions should normally be left to officers. If Planning Committee members are
involved in pre-application discussions, the following principles should apply:


Involvement must only be in meetings arranged by officers and an officer must
be present at all times;



Officers will inform the developer in writing that the purpose of the meeting and
the principles set out in this section and will confirm the outcome of the meeting
in writing afterwards;



Members should avoid any contact, whether in person or not, with the applicants
or the agents outside these meetings;



Members must not express an opinion on the application or involve themselves
in any negotiations on the development that could suggest they have predetermined the application;



Members must not attend meetings after an application is lodged, save as in 3.9;
7

Page 99


3.9

Members must declare their attendance at any such pre-application meeting at
the subsequent consideration of the application.

As part of the wider engagement process, Pre-Application proposals (ie.
development proposals that do not yet form part of a planning application) may be
presented by Developers to Members of the Planning Committee at a scheduled
meeting of the Planning Committee. These pre-application presentations will be for
the more significant regeneration schemes namely for those with:
100 or more residential units and/or
1000 sq m of commercial floorspace
The decision to allow a presentation of any pre-application scheme to the Planning
Committee will however be at the discretion of officers

3.10

The format for these presentations will be:


A short written report prepared by Officers will be tabled as part of the main
agenda, setting out the details of the scheme



The Developer or representatives will deliver a presentation of no more than
10 minutes.



Members of the Planning Committee will have approximately 15 minutes to
question the Developer on any aspect of the scheme that needs factual
clarification.



The minutes of the Planning Committee will note that a presentation was
given

Members and officers must not express an opinion on the merits of a proposal or
involve themselves in any negotiations on the development and can ask factual
questions only.
4

PLANNING APPLICATIONS BY THE COUNCIL, COUNCILLORS & OFFICERS

4.1

It is perfectly legitimate and inevitable that the Council will have to determine its
own planning applications, and those of Members and officers. The Council needs
to take additional care with such applications and the public perception of how such
applications are handled is crucial to the Planning Committee’s credibility as an
impartial decision-making body. The following principles will be followed:


Proposals for the Council's own development will be treated no differently to any
other application;



Such applications will only be approved under delegated powers (to officers)
where there are no substantive objections, where there would be no significant
impact on amenities and where they do not conflict with the provisions of the
Local Plan;



Members or officers who submit a planning application will take no part in its
processing or determination;



Councillors who act as agents for people pursuing a planning matter will play no
part in the decision-making process;



Member and officer applications covered by this section will be determined at
Planning Committee;

8

Page 100



Cabinet members should take care when participating in decisions relating to
their portfolio as they may be viewed as having pre-determined the application in
their Cabinet role;



Members who are friends or relatives of other councillors making planning
applications are likely to have the potential for apparent bias and/or predetermination and should seek advice before participating in the decisionmaking process;



There is no bar on Members determining applications of councillors who are in
the same political group so long as they are not friends, business associates
and/or relatives, or have not pre-determined the application.

4.2

In this section, “officer” includes only those directly involved in the planning process
as part of their normal duties and senior officers at Head of Service level or above.

5

SITE VISITS

5.1

Site visits are a useful means of putting an application into its physical and
environmental context. There are two main circumstances where Members may
undertake site visits:

5.2



A formal visit of the Committee organised by officers;



Informal visits before a Committee meeting by individual Members who cannot
attend the formal visit.

The Members’ Code of Conduct applies to all site visits.
Formal Site Visits

5.3

Officers may recommend, or the Committee may request, a formal site visit. Any
recommendations for site visits put forward by officers will be sent to the Chair for
agreement. The Chair may also put forward recommendations for site visits. Site
visits to larger, complex or controversial sites will be arranged for Members shortly
before the Committee meeting. At these site visits, officers will accompany
Members to selected sites, explain the nature of the development proposed and
point out any features that Members should consider when determining the
application.

5.4

The purpose of the site visit is to enable councillors to inspect the site and to better
understand the impact of the development. The following procedure should be
followed:


Visits will not be publicised save to obtain permission to enter private land;



The applicants, objectors or any other parties interested in the application will
not be allowed to accompany Members and officers, except where attendance is
necessary to allow entry, or for health and safety or other necessary purposes;



No representations should be heard and no decision should be made;



Photographs and videos may be taken only with consent of the householder /
owner.

Informal Site Visits
5.5

If a Member cannot attend the formal site visit and wishes to view the site, s/he may
undertake an informal site visit. The Member should follow the principles below:


Visits should be discreet and unaccompanied;
9

Page 101

5.6



If approached, Members should explain who they are but politely refuse to
engage in any discussion of the application;



Members should not go onto the application site itself if private land, to avoid
risks of lobbying or trespass;



Visits should be declared at the meeting;



Photographs and videos may be taken only with consent of the householder /
owner.

Attendance is not compulsory, but Members who did not attend a formal or informal
site visit should consider whether they have sufficient knowledge of the proposals to
take part in the subsequent debate and vote.

10

Page 102

5.7

Member development
The planning system is complex and subject to frequent change.
It is
recommended as a matter of good practice that Members deciding planning
applications and Members acting as substitutes on Planning Committee have an
accurate and up-to-date understanding of planning law and procedure. To facilitate
this, the officer responsible for development management arranges an on-going
Members’ planning training programme, which covers issues such as:


Determining planning applications



New Planning law and policy;



Probity and committee Procedure;



Section 106 and other legal agreements, and Community Infrastructure Levy;
and



Planning enforcement.

Members are expected to attend as many sessions as possible and especially
those covering the key issues or held after a major change in planning policy or law.
5.8

The Group Whips should maintain a list of Members who have received training and
only put forward substitutes from this list. In addition, officers are always willing to
provide informal advice and assistance to Members on planning and legal matters.

11

Page 103

Guidance on Committee Procedure
1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This guidance supplements the Council Procedure Rules that apply to Planning
Committee (with the exceptions in Rule 25), providing advice on specific issues that
arise before and in Planning Committee.

2

REPORTS

2.1

Where a Developer pre-application presentation occurs in accordance with
paragraph 3.9 of the Guidance on Conduct and Decision-Making Issues in Planning
Matters officers will prepare a Pre-application report presenting the basic
background to the scheme ahead of the developer presentation.

2.2

Reports on planning applications form the key evidence base for Committee
decisions and must therefore be accurate, comprehensive and fair. Reports must
include


all relevant development plan policies and material considerations;



a clear recommendation with a supporting technical appraisal;



A summary of the reasons in support of the recommendation; and



Details of the conditions and obligations required to be imposed.

2.3

There is a risk that when significant material is submitted at a late stage, insufficient
time is allowed for the Committee to read or digest it, and the public are not
sufficiently informed.

2.4

Update reports should be submitted only in exceptional circumstances and may
include only information that was not available to officers before the publication
deadline for the main report and which is the Committee requires to make a fair
decision, information requested by Members during the Committee site visit, or
additional conditions or informatives.

2.5

At the Committee meeting, the Committee Chair must accept that there are “special
circumstances” that allow for the admission of an update report for a particular
agenda item as a matter of urgency, otherwise a decision on the item should be
deferred to the next meeting in order that the additional information be made
available to the press and public for inspection at least five clear working days
before the meeting. These reasons must be recorded in the minutes.

3

APPLICATIONS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST

3.1

Upon receipt of an application, the officer responsible for development management
must consider whether it is of such community interest that changes need to be
made to the usual meeting arrangements. If so, s/he must arrange a pre-meeting
with planning officers, Legal and Democratic Services, Facilities Management and
the Chair to consider:


The meeting venue;



Modifications to the usual rules on public speaking;



The provision of additional staff to support visitors, members and officers;
12

Page 104



Audio or video recording of proceedings;



Risk assessment.

3.2

Any variations agreed to the Committee Procedure must be included in the Agenda
front sheet and reasonable steps must be taken by the report writer to inform the
public and members.

4

CHAIR’S BRIEFING

4.1

The Chair may hold a briefing session with planning officers to review the agenda
and go through the procedures for the meeting, to ensure effective management of
the meeting.

5

ORDER OF BUSINESS

5.1

Meetings will have the following order of business:


Apologies for absence;



Declarations of interests under the Code of Conduct – (those with prejudicial
interests will leave the room at the start of the appropriate item);

•

Minutes of the previous meeting;

•

Chair’s consideration of whether to accept update reports (see 2.2-2.4) and any
other additional material submitted;

•

Pre-application presentations

•

Items where prior notice of public speakers has been given (see Part 8);

•

All other items in the order on which they are on the agenda.

5.2

For Pre-application presentations there will be no oral officer report and the Chair
will just invite the Developer to give their presentation. At the end of the 15 minute
presentation the Chair will invite members of the Planning Committee to ask any
questions regarding the facts of the scheme.

5.3

The following order will be used for each agenda item. Individual items may not
need to follow all these stages, e.g. if there are no public speakers:
•

Declarations of interests not declared previously, lobbying, informal site visits
and attendance at pre-application meetings;

•

Members with pecuniary interests withdraw from the room for the item.

•

Introduction by planning officer;

•

Public speakers’ representations (see 8);

•

Applicant’s or their agent’s representations (see 8);

•

Visiting Members’ comments (see 8.4). Visiting Members must consider if they
have an interest to declare under the Code of Conduct before participating;

•

Members’ questions and debate;

•

Voting.

6

DECISION MAKING PROCEDURE

6.1

To ensure probity and transparency, the following guidance should be followed
when considering an application:
13

Page 105

•

There must be no informal communication between Committee members and
any other person (including other Members). This includes during any
adjournments. Any questions or comments should be made openly and through
the Chair;

•

Members must be present for the whole of an item in order to be able to vote on
that item. If a Member arrives late, s/he must not vote on any item already in
progress at the time of his/her arrival. If a Member requires a comfort break, the
Chair should grant a short adjournment;

•

Where an application is part heard, i.e., it is determined over more than one
Committee hearing, the only Members who may vote on the application are
those Members who are present at all meetings when the application is
considered. This will affect both Planning Committee and substitute Members
only present at one of the meetings;

•

Reasons must be given for any decision reached – this is a legal requirement
and should be clear before any vote.

7

VOTING

7.1

The Committee’s voting procedure must be clear, transparent and easy to follow. It
is important that the public, the applicants and all other persons present understand
what the Committee is voting upon. This can be difficult where the Committee has
to vote more than once on an application to deal, for example, with motions to
include planning conditions and obligations.

7.2

All applications will usually be voted upon as follows:
•

No motions will be proposed during the debate of the matter, without the Chair’s
permission, to ensure a full debate of all applications;

•

The Chair will determine when the debate is finished, clarify any changes made
to the officer recommendation and the details of what is being moved, including
any additional planning conditions, informatives or obligations proposed;

•

If Members wish the item to be deferred for any reason (e.g. further negotiations
or a site visit), this should be considered first and before any other formal
decision making takes place;

•

The Chair will invite any Committee member to move the adoption of the officer’s
recommendation either to grant or refuse planning permission (as set out in the
report). At this point, any changes to the officer’s recommendation must be
moved by Members and determined by the Committee;

•

Any such motion proposed will be voted upon;

•

If a motion to grant planning permission is not carried, or no Member proposes
the officer’s recommendation, the Chair will invite Members to move any other
motion, which will then be voted upon. Reasons must be given for either the
grant or a refusal of a planning permission. (Town and Country Planning
(Development Management and Procedure) (England) Order 2010 (SI
2010/2184), art.31;

•

The reasons to be given, where permission is refused or conditions imposed
must: (1) be stated clearly and precisely; (2) be full; (3) specify all policies and
proposals in the development plan which are relevant to the decision; and (4)
give details of any direction given, or opposing view expressed, by the Secretary
of State or a Government Department.
14

Page 106

8

PUBLIC SPEAKING RIGHTS

8.1

Although members of the public have no legal right to speak at Planning Committee
meetings, the Council recognises the value of representations made at the meeting
and has adopted a protocol which governs public participation. No other speaking
rights apply.

15

Page 107

Interested Residents & Objectors
8.2

Up to 3 speakers may make oral representations, with 3 minutes allowed per
speaker. The following procedure will apply:
•

Planning officers will give at least 5 clear working days’ notice in writing of the
date of the Committee meeting;

•

Speakers must register their wish to speak with the Development Control section
by noon on the day of Committee and provide any additional documentary
evidence by this time (the details of how to do this will be in the notification
letter);

•

Only one speaker per household or organisation will be allowed;

•

The three speaking slots will be filled on a first come, first serve basis (large
groups may be required to nominate a lead speaker or need to be represented
by a visiting Member to ensure a fair balance of speakers – see 8.4 below);

•

If no advance notice is given, there is no right to address the Committee;

•

The Chair has discretion to allow additional documentary evidence to be
submitted by interested residents and objectors where he considers there are
special circumstances to do so. Such evidence must be provided to the
Development Control section, as set out above, or the Committee Manager
before the start of the meeting;

•

The Chair has discretion to extend public speaking time on any item where s/he
considers that there are special circumstances to do so;

•

Public speakers have no right of reply, save to answer questions from the
Committee.

The Applicant or Agent
8.3

The applicant or agent (as stated on the application form) will have three minutes to
speak and the rules at 6.2 will apply although no advance notice is required.
Visiting Members

8.4

Visiting members will be allowed to speak for three minutes only. They have no
right of reply or to ask questions.
Part Heard Applications & Speaking Rights

8.5

In exceptional circumstances where an application is part-heard (i.e. determined
over more than one Committee hearing), the Chair may consider whether to allow
any or all parties additional speaking rights in the following circumstances:
•

8.6

A party has requested a further right to speak and the Chair is satisfied:


There is a significant gap or delay between the first and second
Committee hearings; and/or



There has been material amendment in the nature of the application (but
not requiring a fresh planning application).

The Chair will seek advice from officers before exercising his discretion to allow
further speaking rights under this section.

16

Page 108

9

VARIATION

9.1

The Chair may, in exceptional circumstances, vary the procedure set out above
where it is appropriate to do so to ensure a fair hearing and following the receipt of
advice from officers.

17

Page 109

Interpreting and Translation Assistance
The Council has prepared this document to assist users of its Development Control
Service. If you have any difficulty reading or understanding it because English is not your
first language, we will try to help you. Please tick the box, which shows which language
you speak, write your name, address and telephone number and return this form, together
with the document, to the address given below.
Kansilli e ka pregaditur këtë dokument për tiu ndihmuar
përdorësve të Shërbimeve të Kontrollit të Zhvillimit. Po
patët vështirësi për ta lexuar apo kuptuar sepse Anglishtja
nuk është gjuha juaj e parë, ne do të mundohemi t’ju
ndihmojmë. Ju lusim shenoni katrorin që tregon se cilën
gjuhë e folni, shkruani emrin, adresën dhe numrin e
telefonit dhe ktheni këtë formë, së bashku me dokumentin,
në adresën e dhënë më poshtë.
Albanian 

Arabic 

Bengali



Chinese 
La Municipalité a publié ce document afin d’aider les
utilisateurs de son service de contrôle de développement.
Si vous avez des difficultés à le lire ou à le comprendre
parce que l’anglais n’est pas votre langue maternelle, nous
nous efforcerons de vous aider. Veuillez cocher la case
correspondant à la langue que vous parlez, indiquer votre
nom, votre adresse et votre numéro de téléphone et
renvoyer ce formulaire ainsi que le document à l’adresse
figurant ci-après.
French 

Name
Address

A Junta de Freguesia preparou este documento para
assistir os utentes do seu Serviço de Controlo de
Desenvolvimento. Se tiver dificuldades em ler ou
compreender este documento devido ao inglês não ser o
seu idioma principal, nós tentaremos ajudá-lo(a). Assinale
o quadrado junto ao idioma que fala, escreva o seu nome,
morada e número de telefone e devolva esta folha,
juntamente com o documento, para a morada em baixo.
Portuguese 
Dagmada ayaa diyaarisay dukumantigaan si ay ugu
caawiso dadka ubbaahan Adeegga Koontaroolka
Qorshaynta Dhismaha Magaalada. Haddii aad wax dhib ah
kala kulanto in aad fahamto qoraalkaan waayo Ingiriisku
maahan luuqaddaada koowaad, waxaan isku dayaynaa in
an ku fahamno. Fadlan calaamadi sanduuqa muujinaya
luuqadda aad ku hadasho, qor magacaaga, ciwaankaaga,
taleefoonkaaga, dabadeedna ku soo celi foomka, oo uu
lasocdo qoraalkan, ciwaanka hoos ku qoran.
Somali 
El Ayuntamiento ha redactado este documento para
ayudar a los usuarios del "Development Control Service
[Servicio de Control del Desarrollo]. Si le resulta difícil leer
o entenderlo porque el inglés no es su idioma materno,
intentaremos ayudarle. Marque la casilla que indica el
idioma que habla, rellene el formulario con su nombre,
dirección y número de teléfono y devuélvalo, junto con el
documento, a la dirección abajo reseñada.
Spanish 
Belediyemiz bu belgeyi Iÿmar Kontrol Hizmetlerinden
yararlanan
kimselere
yardýmcý
olmak
amacýyla
hazýrlamýs¸týr. Asýl diliniz Iÿngilizce olmadýg¢ ý için bunu
okumakta veya anlamakta güçlük çekiyorsanýz, size
yardýmcý olmak isteriz. Lütfen hangi dili konus¸tug¢ unuzu
belirten kutuyu is¸aretleyip adýnýzý-soyadýnýzý, adresinizi
ve telefon numaranýzý yazdýktan sonra, bu formu belgeyle
birlikte as¸ag¢ ýdaki adrese gönderin.
Turkish 

Urdu



Return to:
Development Control Group
London Borough of Waltham Forest
Chingford Municipal Offices
The Ridgeway
London E4 6PS

Telephone number
Translated by the London Borough of Waltham

Forest Interpreting and Translation Service
18

Page 110

T34902

Agenda Item 12

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST
Committee/Date:

Council 9 July 2015

Report Title:

Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2014-15

Directorate:

Governance

Contact Details:

John Williams, Democratic Services
Tel. 020 8496 4344
E-mail: john.williams@walthamforest.gov.uk
Ray Gard, Assistant Director, Internal Control
Tel: 020 8496 4801
E-mail: ray.gard@walthamforest.gov.uk

Wards affected:

None specifically

Public Access

Open

1.

SUMMARY

1.1.

To provide an overview of the work of the Audit and Governance
Committee during the 2014/15 civic year.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1.

Council is recommended to receive the Audit and Governance
Committee’s 2014/15 Annual Report.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1.

The Audit and Governance Committee was established to provide
independent assurance of the robustness of, and compliance with, the
Council’s corporate governance procedures and its financial
management and controls and risk management.

3.2.

On 24 May 2012 Council delegated to the Audit and Governance
Committee its functions relating to the standards regime.

3.3.

The Audit and Governance Committee’s composition and role are set
out in its terms of reference, in Part 7 of the Council’s Constitution.

4.

OVERVIEW

4.1

Constitution - The Committee has considered in detail amendments to
the Constitution before recommending them to Council. The main
changes this year have concerned changes to the Property Procedure
Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. As a result the thresholds for
approval of compulsory purchase orders are now clearer and more
corporate, and there is greater clarity around seeking quotations as
opposed to going to tender. The Committee has also noted the
consequential amendments made to the Constitution arising from the
Annual Council Meeting in May 2014 that were delegated to the
Director of Governance.

Page 111

4.2

Internal Control System – The Committee have considered and
approved draft Annual Governance Statement. Monitoring of the
Treasury Strategy and matters such contract waivers continues
routinely. In particular:
4.2.1 Audit – The External Auditor has reviewed the Council's
accounts and the Pension Fund’s business processes: not more
than a few minor adjustments were required. The Committee
has approved the External Audit Plan for 2014-15. The Internal
Audit Plan and Strategy for 2015-16 has been considered.
4.2.2 The Committee continues to monitor internal audit and is
proactively following up those instances where Priority 1
recommendations resulting from these have not been picked up.
Members have noted the Assistant Director of Finance (Audit,
Fraud and Risk)’s opinion that there is reasonable assurance
overall on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
controls.
4.2.3 Revised Anti-Fraud Strategy – The Committee has
systematically reviewed the different elements of the Council’s
internal control systems, in particular during 2014-15 the antifraud strategy. We have therefore amended the following to
reflect changing circumstances and strengthen protection of the
public purse:






Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy;
Anti-money Laundering Policy;
Anti-bribery Policy;
Prosecution and Sanctions Policy; and
Anti-fraud and Corruption Response plan.

4.2.4 The Whistleblowing strategy has also been revised and
updated.
4.2.5 Risk Management – The Committee has kept the risk
management strategy and the corporate risk register under
review. In particular the risk matrix has been revised to place a
greater weighting on impact than likelihood.
4.3

Local Government Ombudsman – The Committee has considered
the Ombudsman’s annual review and noted a marked downward trend
in the number of complaints against the Council that have been upheld.

5.

CONSULTATION

5.1.

This is an information report.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1.

Finance, Value for Money and Risk

Page 112

6.1.1. The work undertaken by the Audit, Fraud and Risk Division May
Disclose financial malpractice, prevent fraud and inefficiency, and
improve the Council’s internal control system, and is a key part of the
Council’s improvement strategy.
6.2.

Legal

6.2.1. The Annual Governance Statement forms part of the annual accounts
under The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011..
6.3.

Equalities and Diversity

6.3.1. None.
6.4.

Sustainability (including climate change, health, crime and
disorder

6.4.1. None.
6.5.

Council Infrastructure (e.g. human resources, accommodation or
IT issues

6.5.1. None.
Background Information
None.

Page 113

